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1 BACKGROUND 
1.1 Purpose 

Relevant project history & need for the project: 

Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (RWSD or District) provides water and sewer service 
within its existing district boundaries.  The District currently provides water service to 
approximately 3,400 Equivalent Residential Units (EQRs), with a planned buildout of 3,800 EQRs. 

Several existing developments located in close proximity to RWSD were developed in the 1970s 
and 1980s, and are currently supplied by non-renewable groundwater from the Denver Basin 
aquifers.  The existing developments include Chatfield Acres, Chatfield East, Titan Road Industrial 
Park (TRIP) and Plum Valley Heights.  Chatfield Acres, Chatfield East, and Plum Valley Heights are 
residential developments currently served by individual wells.  Titan Road Industrial Park includes 
commercial and light industrial development currently served by two existing non-tributary wells 
and an existing distribution system. 

Water levels in the Denver Basin aquifers are declining and will continue to decline with continued 
use of the aquifer as a significant source of water for northern Douglas County.  The existing 
developments near RWSD are located near the margins of the aquifers, and water levels in this 
area are declining sooner and more rapidly than in more central parts of the aquifers.  As a result 
existing wells in the area have failed, or are in danger of failing. 

Under the proposed project, the existing developments would receive potable water service from 
RWSD.   

Overview of project: 

The existing developments to be served by the proposed project would be included in the 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District and the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (PVHSD or Subdistrict).  New distribution and storage 
facilities will be required to serve the existing units and will include approximately 12 miles of new 
distribution pipelines and a 260,000 gallon water storage tank.   

RWSD obtains its raw water supply by contract with the City of Aurora, and has obtained an 
additional supply of 150 AF/yr which will be used to supply the additional units.  Treatment service 
will be provided at the existing RWSD water treatment facility which has adequate capacity to 
serve the existing additional units. 

The new facilities will be constructed by the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict, and operated by the 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. Existing development units will be required to connect 
to the distribution system within 2 years of completion of the system. 
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Type of project and loan funding amount requested: 

The proposed project would provide a replacement water supply for the existing developments to 
be included in the PVH Subdistrict. The primary project components include acquisition of water 
supply, and potable distribution and storage infrastructure.  PVHSD is requesting a loan of 
approximately $2.2M (90% of total water cost of 2.355M) from the CWCB to fund the water 
supply acquisition.  Funding for the required infrastructure improvements and other project costs 
will be provided by loans from Douglas County, the Colorado Water Resources and Power 
Development Authority, and Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. 

Project intention and importance to the District: 

The proposed project has been developed through the cooperative efforts of the Roxborough 
Water and Sanitation District, Douglas County, Aurora Water, and the residents of the areas to be 
served.  RWSD has agreed to provide service to the developments in the PVH Subdistrict, and to 
operate, maintain, and ultimately own the required infrastructure.  Douglas County performed 
conceptual studies for the project and has agreed to provide both loans and grants in support of 
the project.  Aurora Water has committed to providing additional water supply to allow RWSD to 
provide service to the Subdistrict. And finally, the residents/owners in the existing developments 
have voted to include in the District and the Subdistrict, and have committed to pay the project 
costs.   

Douglas County has contributed its portion of the funding to RWSD, and the CWRPDA has 
approved a $5.2M loan to fund a portion of the required infrastructure.  Securing funding for 
acquisition of the required additional water supply is the final financial step to enable this project 
to proceed. 

1.2  Study Area Description 

Description of study area including county, towns, topography and major streams: 

The water service area of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District is located along the 
eastern edge of the foothills in unincorporated northwest Douglas County, south of C-470, and 
west of US Highway 85.  The Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water and 
Sanitation District is located to the northeast of the District’s existing water service area as shown 
in Figure 1. 
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Socio economic characteristics including population, employment, and land use: 

The following 2010 Douglas County census data describes the basic make-up and population 
characteristics of the Roxborough area and the population of the District’s existing water service 
area.  The demographics of the PVD Subdistrict developments is expected to be similar. 

Population: 9,099 

Households: 3,137 

Capita per Household: 2.91 

Median Household Income (MHI): $103,080 

Land Area: 9.23 sq. mi 

-Source: US Census Bureau State & County QuickFacts 

Currently the EQR’s served by the District are composed of approximately 97% residential users, 
2% commercial users, and 1% irrigation users.  Because the District’s service area is approximately 
90% built out at this time, the overall distribution of users is not anticipated to change 
considerably from the current distribution and make-up. 

1.3 Previous Studies 

Identify, summarize previous studies: 

Plum Valley Heights (PVH) is an existing rural residential development that includes 29 residential 
lots ranging in size from approximately 4.5 ac to 7.5 ac. The area was developed in the 1970s 
based on individual nontributary wells.  Water levels in the aquifers are dropping, and in recent 
years, a number of wells have failed and have had to be redrilled.  As a result, PVH has been 
actively pursuing an alternate water source in the form centralized service from an existing 
provider.  In its pursuit of an alternate source of water, PVH received assistance from Douglas 
County under the County’s Water Alternatives Program.  Initial assistance included funding for 
engineering feasibility studies.  In 2013 PVH was included in the Roxborough Water and Sanitation 
District, but has not yet connected to the RWSD system. 

In early 2014, after other communities contacted Douglas County about their Water needs, 
Douglas County began investigating the potential for having an existing entity provide water 
service to other existing and potential development in the area.  In addition to performing 
engineering studies, DC began negotiations with the City of Aurora regarding the potential for 
obtaining a raw water supply from Aurora.   
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The area to be served by this project is located in close proximity to the service areas of three 
existing water service providers, including Dominion Water and Sanitation District (DWSD), 
Centennial Water and Sanitation District (CWSD), and Roxborough Water and Sanitation District.  
Douglas County studied the potential for service from all three existing providers and concluded 
that obtaining water service from RWSD was the preferred option.   

DWSD was formed primarily to serve the Sterling Ranch (SR) development, and currently does not 
have any infrastructure in place, which would delay implementation of service.  In addition, as a 
developing district, DWSD has not finalized its water supply or its cost for service, making planning 
and funding a project more challenging. 

CWSD has substantial existing infrastructure in place with adequate capacity to serve the existing 
developments.  However, CWSD does not have adequate water supply to serve the existing 
development, and would have to acquire additional water supply from the WISE project.  Due to 
the cost and intermittent availability of WISE water, the CWSD became a less desirable option as 
compared to the RWSD option.  In addition, the WISE project is in the development stage, and it is 
unknown when WISE deliveries will commence. 

RWSD has existing water supply and treatment infrastructure in place that could be used to serve 
the existing developments.  RWSD receives its raw water supply from Aurora, and has the 
infrastructure in place to utilize the raw water to be provided by Aurora in support of the 
proposed project.  In addition, RWSD has already included and agreed to serve PVH. 

The County’s studies identified RWSD as the most feasible service provider for the area due to its 
location, existing infrastructure, access to water supply conveyance systems, and willingness to 
participate in regional projects.  Providing water service to this area of NWDC became a joint 
effort, with the water supply provided by the City of Aurora, treatment and distributions service 
provided by RWSD, and partial funding and other project facilitation provided by Douglas County. 

A number of alternatives for service by RWSD were evaluated, ranging from larger projects to 
provide domestic and fire flow service to future as well as existing development, to a more limited 
scope project which supplies only domestic service to the existing development areas. 

Final evaluation of alternatives for the project were developed in a Preliminary Engineering Report 
which was submitted to CDPHE in support of an application for a revolving fund loan through the 
Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority.  The alternatives evaluated in the 
PER are summarized in Section 4 of this study. 
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2 PROJECT SPONSOR 

Type of organization, Official name, year formed, formation statutes: 

The Roxborough Park Metropolitan District was originally formed in 1971 as a special district 
under Title 32 of Colorado Revised Statutes and was authorized to provide water, sewer, and fire 
protection services to its customers.  Subsequently, in 1999, responsibility for fire protection 
service was transferred to the West Metro Fire Protection District.  The name of the District was 
changed, in 2006, to the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District to more accurately reflect the 
services provided by the District. 

The Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District was formed 
in August, 2013, also under Title 32 of the Colorado Revised Statutes.  (Ref. Appendix A for the 
formation resolution and a memo re: Subdistrict formation and financing)  The purpose of the 
Subdistrict is to enable the cost of the project to be paid exclusively by customers of the 
Subdistrict, without impacting existing district customers.  The Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of 
the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District is the sponsor for the proposed project. 

Number of customers, taps, water usage, future growth plans: 

The District currently provides water service to approximately 3,400 EQRs, with a planned 
buildout of 3,800 EQRs.  It is anticipated that the remaining 400 EQRs will be infill units located 
within the existing district boundary.  The average raw water demand of existing District 
customers is approximately 0.34 AF/yr. 

Ultimately, the proposed project will provide service to 251 EQRs in the PVH Subdistrict, 228 of 
which are existing.  Initially, the project will provide service to the 228 existing EQRs.  The 
remaining project capacity will be utilized to serve infill lots within the existing developments, or 
potentially adjacent existing development.  Water demand in the PVH Subdistrict is expected to 
be similar to the demand of existing District customers. 

Identification of revenue sources: 

The Subdistrict’s authorized sources of revenue include ad valorem taxes, user charges, rates, 
fees, and tolls.  In order to ensure adequate revenues, the Subdistrict will review rates on an 
annual basis using similar rate methodology to that used by the District. Revenues generated by 
ad valorem taxes, rates, and other fees and charges, will be the source of funds for repayment of 
the loan.  

Description of existing water supply facilities owned/operated by District: 

The District’s current water supply is based entirely on renewable water delivered under the 2010 
water supply agreement with Aurora.  Water from the South Platte River is delivered to the 
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District’s water treatment facility through water supply facilities owned and operated by Aurora.   
Water supply for the proposed project will be delivered to the treatment facility along with the 
existing RWSD supply. 
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3 WATER RIGHTS 

3.1 Water Availability 

The 2010 Raw Water Supply Agreement between the District and Aurora provides a sufficient 
water supply to meet the projected demands of the District at buildout.  Under the agreement, 
the District did not acquire ownership of water rights; rather, Aurora agreed to provide a 
permanent raw water supply to the District using Aurora’s existing and future raw water supplies 
and facilities. The 2010 agreement does not provide does not provide the District with an 
adequate supply to serve the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict.  In order to provide an adequate 
supply for PVHSD, RWSD and Aurora entered into an agreement under which Aurora will provide 
an additional 150 AF/yr supply to the District. 

Aurora Water 150 IGA 

The 150 AF Water Supply Agreement between Aurora Water and the Roxborough Water and 
Sanitation District (ref. Appendix B) provides an additional supply of up to 150 AF/yr to be used as 
the water supply for the proposed project.  The complete 150 IGA is presented in Appendix B.  Key 
provisions of the 150 IGA include: 

1. Aurora will deliver a maximum of 150 ac-ft/yr of raw water through its existing system to 
the delivery point for treatment by the District. 

2. The District may use the water supplied under the agreement to serve a maximum of 316 
units located within the PVH Subdistrict. 

3. The District will pay Aurora the then current connection fee for each EQR connected to the 
District’s system.  Payment is due at the time each new unit is connected, or within 5 years 
of the date of the agreement, whichever comes first. 

4. In addition to the Development and Connection Fee, the District will pay Aurora a rate per 
1,000 gallons for raw water supplied to the District.   

Drought provisions: 

Aurora has developed a Water Management Plan to ensure the reliability of its water supply 
under varying water availability conditions.  In general, the plan establishes varying levels of water 
use restrictions in response to varying levels of drought.  Under 150 Agreement, the terms of the 
Water Management Plan will apply to the District’s supply and its customers in the same way it 
applies to Aurora’s in-city customers. 

 

 

 



PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS SUBDISTRICT OF THE ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
                                                                                LOAN FEASIBILITY STUDY 

COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD LOAN APPLICATION 
   

TST Infrastructure, LLC                                                                                                               8 | P a g e  
 

3.2 Water Supply Demands 

Existing, future and comparison of demands: 

According to District water use records, the average raw water demand for the District’s existing 
potable water customers is approximately 0.34 ac-ft/yr/EQR.  Demand in the PVH Subdistrict is 
expected to be similar.  Both of the District’s water supply agreements provide a supply of 0.4737 
ac-ft/yr/EQR, which provides a 35% factor of safety over the District’s current average demand. 
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4 PROJECT DESCRIPTION – ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES AND SELECTED 
ALTERNATIVE 

4.1 Analysis of Alternatives 

Alternatives were developed based on the geographic area to be served and the level of service to 
be provided.  The Basic Service Alternative includes only domestic service to existing 
developments.  The Basic Service Alternative does not include fire flow service or provide for 
expanded capacity to serve future development.   The Extended Service Alternative increased the 
level of service to include fire flow service, and increased the area to be served to include other 
existing developments as well as future development in the area. 

Under both the action alternatives, RWSD would provide treatment service using its existing 
treatment facility.  Except for the treatment facility, service to the proposed project area would 
not utilize the existing RWSD system.  Service to the project area would be accomplished using 
new transmission, distribution, and storage facilities. 

Evaluation Factors: 

Each of the alternatives was evaluated based on the following criteria: 

1. Replacement of supply – Alternatives were evaluated based on the ability to replace the 
failing groundwater supply and provide a permanent, renewable water supply to the 
PVH Subdistrict service area. 

2. Economic analysis and feasibility – In comparing alternative projects, economic analyses 
normally include both initial capital cost and the present value of annual operating and 
maintenance costs.  For this analysis, it was determined that annual operating and 
maintenance costs for the action alternatives would be directly proportional to the 
number of customers served.  As a result, a present value analysis would provide no 
meaningful distinction between the alternatives, the economic analysis was based on 
the initial capital cost of each alternative. 

3. Impacts to the environment – Primarily addresses the requirement for new 
infrastructure. 

4. Institutional requirements – required permits, court actions, contracts, agreements etc. 
5. Special considerations – technical considerations, further investigations, 

uncertainty/risk, etc. 

4.1.1 Alternative 1 - No Action 

Under the No Action Alternative, no new facilities would be constructed, and for the immediate 
future, existing developments would continue to utilize individual non-tributary wells.  Well 
failures due to declining water levels could be expected to continue, with the only immediate 
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remedies being, drilling new wells or hauling water.  Drilling new wells would be considered a 
temporary solution due to declining water levels in the aquifer.  Permanent solutions could 
include committing permanently to hauling water, or developing another project to receive 
service from another service provider.  

4.1.2 Alternative 2 - Basic Service to Existing Development 

The Basic Service Alternative provides for a domestic supply from RWSD to the existing 
developments.  The service area for this alternative would be limited to the existing developments 
of Chatfield Acres, Chatfield East, Plum Valley Heights and Titan Road Industrial Park.  The system 
would not be designed for future expansion with respect to either level of service or service area. 

New infrastructure required for the Basic Service Alternative includes new pumping capacity at 
the RWSD water treatment facility; a transmission pipeline to convey treated water from the 
water treatment facility to storage and distribution; a potable water storage tank; internal 
distribution systems for each of the residential developments; and connection to the existing TRIP 
system.  The new system would be designed to deliver peak hour flow to the four development 
areas.  The proposed layout for new infrastructure under Alternative 2 is presented in Figure 2. 

Raw water would be delivered to the RWSD water treatment facility through Aurora’s existing raw 
water delivery system.  Since the source of water for the proposed project is the same as RWSD’s 
existing water supply delivery of raw water and treatment would occur in conjunction with 
RWSD’s normal water supply and treatment activities.  New pumping capacity would be added to 
the treatment facility to convey treated water to the new water storage tank.  Except for raw 
water delivery and water treatment, the proposed infrastructure would not be connected to 
RWSD’s existing system. 

4.1.3 Alternative 3 – Extended Service 

Alternative 3 increased both the level of service and the service area.  The level of service was 
increased to include a 1,500 gpm fire flow in addition to the domestic service provided by 
Alternative 2.  Under Alternative 3, the proposed service area was also expanded to include 
additional existing and future development areas located to the south of the service area 
proposed under Alternative 2.  The proposed layout for new infrastructure under Alternative 3 is 
presented in Figure 3. 

Alternative 3 would be developed in phases, based on the rate of development within the 
proposed service area.  The initial phase would provide service to the four existing developments 
served under Alternative 2.  The second phase would provide service to existing developments 
such as the Louviers community, as well as future developments, all located to the south of the 
initial phase service area.  Timing for the second phase would likely be dependent on the rate of 
future development. 
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Under Alternative 3, new infrastructure would be sized to provide both peak hour flow and 
maximum day plus a 1,500 gpm fire flow.  The 1,500 gpm fire flow would provide adequate flow in 
the existing residential areas, but could potentially cause some limitations in future commercial 
development such as limits on type and size of construction, or requirements for installation of 
sprinkler systems. 

Douglas County previously evaluated an increased level of service that provided for domestic flow 
and a 3,500 gpm fire flow.  The increased fire flow capability would eliminate the potential 
restrictions on future development associated with a lower fire flow.  Infrastructure requirements 
were similar to those under Alternative 3, but with increased capacity to accommodate the 
increased fire flow.  The County’s evaluation indicated that increasing fire flow capacity would 
significantly increase the cost of the project.  It was determined that under current development 
conditions, the project was not feasible at the increased cost. As a result, this option was not 
considered to be a viable alternative and was not included in this report. 

New infrastructure required for the initial phase of Alternative 3 includes similar components to 
those identified for Alternative 2 including new pumping capacity at the RWSD water treatment 
facility; a transmission pipeline to convey treated water from the water treatment facility to 
storage and distribution; a potable water storage tank; internal distribution systems for each of 
the residential developments; and connection to the existing TRIP system.  The new system would 
be designed to provide domestic service and fire flows to the four development areas.  Certain 
components of the initial phase would be oversized to facilitate expansion of the system during 
the second phase.    

New infrastructure for the second phase of Alternative 3 would include additional pipelines to 
serve additional development areas, as well as increased pumping capacity at the water treatment 
facility.  Storage capacity for the second phase would be constructed during the initial phase. 

System operations under Alternative 3 would be the same as under Alternative 2.  Raw water 
would be delivered to the RWSD water treatment facility through Aurora’s existing raw water 
delivery system.  Since the source of water for the proposed project is the same as RWSD’s 
existing water supply delivery of raw water and treatment would occur in conjunction with 
RWSD’s normal water supply and treatment activities.  New pumping capacity would be added to 
the treatment facility to convey treated water to the new water storage tank.  Except for raw 
water delivery and water treatment, the proposed infrastructure would not be connected to 
RWSD’s existing system. 

It should be noted that the water supply available under the Aurora 150 IGA provides an adequate 
supply for the initial phase only.  Implementation of the second phase would require acquisition of 
additional water supply.  It is unknown whether the additional supply could be obtained from the 
same source, and investigation of other sources may be required. 
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4.1.4 Environmental Impacts 

The primary impact of the No Action Alternative would be continued use of a non-renewable 
resource.  The Denver Basin aquifers are considered to be non-recharging and continued use of 
these aquifers will ultimately result in loss of the resource.  In addition, prior to the permanent 
loss of the resource, it is anticipated that extracting water from these aquifers will become 
increasingly difficult as water levels recede.   More wells will be required to extract the same 
quantity of water, resulting in more drilling activity.  As an alternative to drilling additional wells, 
users may elect to haul water, resulting in traffic and fuel burning impacts. 

Environmental impacts would be similar for all of the action alternatives.  Implementation of the 
action alternatives will require construction of new pipelines and a new water storage tank.  A 
general impact associated with construction activities is expected to be the potential for erosion 
and sediment impacts.  These potential impacts will be managed by compliance with Douglas 
County’s Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control program. 

In addition to general construction impacts, potential impacts of construction of the action 
alternatives could include impacts to burrowing owl habitat to the east of the RWSD treatment 
facility, and a pipeline crossing of the wetland areas associated with Plum Creek.  A survey will be 
required to determine whether burrowing owls are present in the vicinity of the proposed 
construction.  If the survey determines that burrowing owls are present, pipeline routes may be 
adjusted to avoid the identified habitat, or construction activities may be initiated during the 
winter months when the owls are not present.  Impacts to wetland and riparian areas near Plum 
Creek will be avoided by boring the pipeline under the creek. 

4.1.5  Land Requirements 

Easements will be required for new pipelines and the new water storage tank.  The District will 
attempt to acquire all easements through negotiation, using its condemnation authority only if 
negotiations are unsuccessful.   

Pipelines generally require a 30’ wide easement, and less than 5 acres will be required for 
construction of the water tank, depending on the configuration of the site. 

4.1.6 Construction Issues 

The project is based on standard pipeline and tank construction, and no unusual construction 
problems are anticipated.  To the extent possible, pipelines will be routed to reduce conflicts with 
existing natural features and existing facilities and infrastructure.  When required, boring 
techniques will be used to further reduce conflicts between the proposed pipelines and existing 
facilities. 
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4.1.7 Operational Aspects 

The proposed project is expected to have minimal impacts on system operations.  Water will be 
treated as part of RWSDs normal treatment process, and due to the relatively low demand of the 
proposed project, few if any operational changes are expected at the water treatment facility. 

The proposed project will be served by new pumping, transmission, distribution, and storage 
facilities, which will not be directly connected to the existing RWSD transmission and distribution 
systems.  RWSD will be required to operate and maintain additional pumping, pipeline, and 
storage facilities, however due to the limited scope of the proposed project, the increase in 
operational demands are expected to be minimal 

4.1.8 Cost Estimates 

No immediate cost can be identified for the No Action alternative, since the failure rate for the 
existing wells cannot be predicted.  No new infrastructure would be constructed and no fees 
would be required.  Long term cost impacts could include the costs associated with redrilling 
existing wells, hauling water, potential loss of property value due to inadequate water supply and 
the cost to develop an alternate supply project. 

The estimated total project cost for Alternative 2 is $14.96M, which includes the following: 

Water Supply   $2.47M 

Infrastructure   $8.32M 

Fees    $3.03M 

Engineering   $1.14M 

Total    $14.96M 

Detailed cost estimates for Alternative 2 are presented in Appendix C. 

The estimated total project cost for Alternative 3, to serve the 4 existing developments is $29.3M, 
which includes the following: 

Water Supply   $5.6M 

Infrastructure   $14.90M 

Fees    $6.13M 

Engineering   $2.73M 

Total    $29.3M 

Detailed cost estimates for Alternative 3 are presented in Appendix D. 
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4.1.9  Advantages/Disadvantages 

Alternative 1 

The only potential advantages to the No Action Alternative would include no immediate cost to 
the existing developments and no immediate environmental impacts due to construction of new 
infrastructure.  In both cases, these advantages would be temporary. 

The primary disadvantage of the No Action Alternative is that it does not accomplish the goal of 
providing a renewable water supply to existing development.  In addition to not accomplishing the 
primary goal, the No Action Alternative also results in the following immediate and future 
negative impacts: 

• Continued demand on a non-renewable resource that will eventually be lost. 
• Increased future expense to existing development to replace the groundwater supply.  Any 

future solution is likely to cost more than one of the current potential solutions. 
• Loss of property value due to inadequate water supply. 

Alternative 2 

Alternative 2 is the lower cost of the action alternatives and can be accomplished for a per EQR 
cost that appears to be acceptable to the customers to be served based on the voting results of 
the November 2014 ballot questions where approx.. 90% or the voters approved all of the ballot 
questions. 

Alternative 3 

Alternative 3 also accomplishes the primary goal of providing a renewable water supply to existing 
development, reducing the demand on a limited resource.  Like Alternative 2,  Alternative 3 uses 
existing infrastructure including raw water delivery systems and treatment to the maximum 
extent possible, which increases the efficiency of the existing systems and reduces the new 
construction required. 

Environmental impacts under Alternative 3 are expected to be similar to the potential impacts 
under Alternative 2.  Again, impacts are expected to be relatively minor due to limited 
infrastructure requirements and the areas to be disturbed.  The area to be disturbed under the 
first phase of Alternative 3 would be slightly larger due to construction of a larger water storage 
tank.  Phase 2 of Alternative 3 would result in a significant increase in disturbed area due the 
larger service area.  In both phases unavoidable impacts could be easily mitigated using standard 
construction techniques and controls. 

Alternative 3 is the higher cost of the action alternatives due to the larger capacity required for 
most of the project components.  As compared to Alternative 2, the majority of the pipelines 
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would be upsized to carry fire flow, and the capacity of the water storage tank would be increased 
significant to provide the required fire storage. 

To accommodate future growth, certain portions of the initial phase of Alternative 3 including the 
water storage tank and transmission pipelines would require oversizing.  The cost of oversized 
components attributable to future growth is $3.4M. This cost would have to be carried by project 
participants, most likely Douglas County, until the costs could be recovered from future 
development. 

The water supply could be obtained from Aurora for the proposed project is limited to 150 AF, 
which provides an adequate supply for the initial phase of Alternative 3, but additional supply 
would have to be acquired for the second phase. 

4.1.10  Comparison of Alternatives 

A summary comparison of project features and costs is presented below in Table 1.   

Table 1 – Summary of Alternative Analysis and Evaluation Considerations 

Evaluation Factors Alternative 1 – 
No Action 

Alternative 2 – 
Basic Service 

Alternative 3 – 
Expanded Service 

Level of Service None Basic Basic plus Fire Flow 
Capital Costs $0 $15.0M $29.3M 

Impacts Significant Low Low 
Institutional 

Requirements None Low Low 

Special 
Considerations 

Does not provide 
renewable supply 

Does not provide Fire 
Flow 

No water supply 
currently available for 

Phase 2 
 

4.2 Selected Alternative 

The selected alternative for this project is Alternative 2.  

Alternative 2 accomplishes the primary goal of providing a renewable water supply to existing 
developments at the lowest cost of the alternatives considered.  Alternative 2 also minimizes 
impacts by limiting the scope of the project to serve only existing development. 

The No Action alternative was eliminated because it did not address the primary goal of the 
project, to provide a renewable water supply.  This was viewed as deferring the problem, and in all 
likelihood making it more difficult to resolve in the future.  The current opportunity provide a 
solution through the cooperative efforts of the City of Aurora, Douglas County, and Roxborough 
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Water and Sanitation District which has not previously existed and is not likely to again in the 
future.   

Alternative 3 was eliminated due to cost considerations and limited available water supply.  It was 
recognized that providing a higher level of service in the form of fire flows would be a benefit to 
the existing developments, however the increased cost made it more likely that the project would 
lose support from customers, and from Douglas County who would likely have had to subsidize or 
carry at least a portion of the added cost.  In addition, complete development of Alternative 3 
would require acquisition of additional water supply, which could be difficult. 

The infrastructure required to provide service to the added units included in the selected 
alternative include both existing and new facilities.  A map of major infrastructure requirements is 
presented in Figure 2.  Preliminary pipeline sizes were developed based on hydraulic modeling of 
the backbone system.   

Raw water delivery 

The water supply for the proposed project will be provided by the City of Aurora.  The City has 
extensive infrastructure for collecting and conveying its water supply, and the water supply for the 
Selected Alternative will be delivered through that system along with RWSDs water supply.  Raw 
water is diverted from the South Platte River at Strontia Springs Reservoir and conveyed by tunnel 
to Aurora’s Rampart Reservoir.  Water is conveyed from Rampart Reservoir to the RWSD 
treatment plant by existing 42” and 54” transmission pipelines owned by Aurora. 

The City of Aurora recently completed hydraulic modeling of its transmission pipelines to confirm 
that the pipelines have sufficient capacity to convey raw water to the RWSD water treatment 
facility. 

Water Treatment 

The existing treatment facility has an overall capacity of 2.8 MGD based on the capacity of the 
existing filters.  The maximum day demand on the facility by RWSD’s existing customers is 
approximately 2.211MGD.  The remaining capacity is adequate to serve the proposed project. 

The existing treatment facility was originally constructed in 1958, and has been modified and 
upgraded numerous times.  Due to its age, RWSD has determined that the facility is reaching its 
useful life and should be replaced.  RWSD is currently designing a new treatment facility to replace 
the existing facility, and the design for the new facility has been submitted to CDPHE for design 
approval.  The new facility will provide RWSD with 4 MGD of treatment capacity which will provide 
sufficient capacity for RWSD at buildout, including the proposed project. 

Based the anticipated schedules for the proposed project and the new water treatment facility, it 
is anticipated that the existing facility may be used for the proposed project for a short period of 
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time until completion of the new treatment facility.  However if the new treatment facility is 
completed prior to the proposed project, the proposed project would be served from the new 
facility. 

Transmission Pipeline 

A 6” transmission pipeline is planned to convey water from the water treatment facility to the 
proposed storage tank.  In general, the transmission pipeline was sized to carry maximum day 
flow.  Certain portions of the transmission pipeline will also be required to carry peak hour flows 
for a portion of the service area.   

Easements or licenses will be required from a variety of owners for the transmission line.  Based 
on the evaluation of the preliminary alignment of the pipeline, a tentative list of ownerships 
requiring easements/licenses includes Sterling Ranch, Douglas County, Union Pacific Railroad, 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad, Backcountry Association, Inc and the Colorado Department 
of Transportation.  The final list of ownerships will be developed when the final pipeline alignment 
has been established. 

The transmission pipeline will cross Plum Creek at a single location, currently planned near the 
intersection of Titan and Moore Roads.  For ease of construction and to minimize disturbance of 
the creek, it is anticipated that pipeline will be installed in this area using directional drilling 
techniques.    

The transmission pipeline will also cross South Santa Fe Drive and two existing railroad tracks.  
Crossings of these major transportation facilities will be bored, to eliminate disruption of these 
major transportation facilities. 

Distribution Pipelines 

Distribution pipelines will be constructed in each of the three residential developments.  Pipeline 
sizes for distribution pipelines will be determined by hydraulic modeling performed as part of the 
design process. 

It is anticipated that the majority of the distribution pipelines will be located in road Right-of-Way 
(ROW), adjacent to the pavement.  Permits will be required for construction in the ROW.  In some 
cases, existing facilities in the ROW may necessitate crossing private property with pipelines, in 
which case easements will be required. 

Storage Tank 

The storage tank capacity of 260,000 gallons provides storage for the estimated maximum day 
flow for the 251 EQRs to be served by the proposed project.  If feasible, based on site 
considerations, the tank will be buried in accordance with Douglas County development 
guidelines.  It is anticipated that the tank construction will be post-tensioned concrete. 
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The proposed location for the storage tank is to the east of the Chatfield East development, on 
open space property owned by Backcountry Association, Inc.  An easement or ownership transfer 
will be required for the proposed site. 

4.3 Cost Estimate 

The estimated overall capital cost of the project of the selected alternative is $15M, including 
infrastructure, water supply, RWSD Fees, engineering, and financing fees.  A summary of capital 
costs is presented in Table 2. Detailed cost estimates for the project are presented in Appendix C.   

Table 2 – Alternative 2 Overall Project Cost 

  
Shared Infrastructure $4,322,100 
Internal Infrastructure $3,992,361 
Financing Fees and Debt Reserve $300,000 
RWSD Fees $2,698,250 
Water Supply $2,473,605 
Election $30,000 
Engineering $1,144,000 
Total $14,906,316 

 

An estimated schedule of cash flow for the proposed capital improvements is presented in 
Appendix E.  The estimated capital costs are based on the overall project costs summarized in 
Table 2.  Estimated revenues are based on user charges, fees and taxes presented in Table 4.  The 
schedule projects a positive balance through the year 2036. 

Addition of the 251 EQRs to be served by the proposed project is not expected to have an 
appreciable impact on the District’s O&M costs.  Service to the additional units will be 
accomplished using the District’s existing staff, management, and institutional infrastructure.  
Water treatment for the additional units will be accomplished in conjunction with RWSDs normal 
water treatment operations, and the additional infrastructure will be added to the District’s 
routine maintenance.  As compared to the District’s existing operations and maintenance 
activities, the increased operational requirements related to the added units are expected to be 
negligible.  No significant increase in the operational budget is anticipated and no increase in rates 
for O&M activities is planned as a result of the proposed project. 

4.4 Implementation Schedule 

Implementation of the proposed project involves a number of entities including Roxborough 
Water and Sanitation District, Douglas County, the City of Aurora, as well as the existing entities to 
be served.  Some of the institutional arrangements required for the project have been completed, 
while other required actions are in progress, or are upcoming.  The following list summarizes the 
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status of the project and outlines the steps necessary for the project to proceed.  All of the items 
listed must be completed in order for the project to proceed.  If any one item cannot be 
completed, the project will not proceed. 

• Water Supply - The water supply agreement between RWSD and the City of Aurora has been 
completed (Ref. Appendix B). 

• Participation Agreement – The project participation agreement between RWSD and Douglas 
County is complete and is included in Appendix F. 

• Funding of certain items by Douglas County per the Agreement. This item is complete.  
RWSD has received the required funding from Douglas County. 

• Inclusion of properties and authorization of debt  
o An election was held on November 4, 2014 to authorize the inclusion of properties 

into the District and authorize the necessary debt including the method of 
repayment.  Specific ballot questions address: 
 Authorization of inclusion of properties into the Roxborough Water and 

Sanitation District. 
 Authorization of inclusion of the properties into the Plum Valley Heights 

Subdistrict, which is required for financing and repayment of debt. 
 Authorization to incur debt. 
 Authorization for increased mill levy to repay debt. 

o Passage of all ballot questions was required for the project to proceed. 
o All ballot questions passed.  Election results are included in Appendix G. 

• Approval of CWRPDA loan for infrastructure.  This item is complete.  The requested loan of 
$5.2M was approved by the CWRPDA board on March 6, 2015. 

• Approval of CWCB loan for water supply 
• Acquisition of all required easements and ROW. 
• Receipt of acceptable bids for construction of the project 

A preliminary schedule for completion of the proposed project is presented in Figure 4.  Design, 
Right of Way acquisition, approvals would commence early in 2015, with completion in the fall of 
2015.  Construction is expected to begin late in 2015 and continue into the early part of 2017. 

Upon completion of the main project infrastructure, customers in the project area will have a 
maximum of 2 years to connect to the system. 

The completed infrastructure improvements will initially be owned by the PVH Subdistrict, but will 
be operated and maintained by RWSD.  Upon retirement of the CWRPDA loan, ownership of the 
infrastructure will be conveyed to RWSD. Specifics regarding financing, ownership, and operation 
of the PVH Subdistrict system are provided in the RWSD – PVH IGA (Ref. Appendix H). 
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4.5 Environmental Impacts 

General Construction Impacts 

Implementation of the selected alternative will require construction of new pipelines and a new 
water storage tank.  A general impact associated with construction activities is expected to be the 
potential for erosion and sediment impacts.  These potential impacts will be managed by 
compliance with Douglas County’s Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control (GESC) program.  GESC 
requirements will be included in the construction documents, and initial and ongoing inspections 
of GESC items will be performed by both Douglas County and RWSD. 

Specific Construction Impacts 

In addition to general construction impacts, potential impacts resulting from construction of the 
selected alternative could include impacts to burrowing owl habitat to the east of the RWSD 
treatment facility, and the transmission pipeline crossing of the wetland areas associated with 
Plum Creek.   

A survey will be required to determine whether burrowing owls are present in the vicinity of the 
proposed construction.  If the survey determines that burrowing owls are present, pipeline routes 
may be adjusted to avoid the identified habitat, or construction activities may be initiated during 
the winter months (November 1 through March 14) when the owls are not present.   

The area in and adjacent to Plum Creek is generally characterized as wetlands.  In addition, the 
Plum Creek riparian area is presumed to be habitat for the endangered Preble’s Meadow Jumping 
Mouse.  The transmission pipeline will cross Plum Creek at a single location, currently planned 
near the intersection of Titan and Moore Roads.  It is anticipated that directional drilling 
techniques will be utilized to cross under the creek, eliminating the need to disturb the majority of 
the riparian area and sensitive habitats. 

Construction of the distribution system piping will occur in developed areas, primarily adjacent to 
roadways.  No significant environmental issues are anticipated during construction of the 
distribution system piping. 

The water storage tank site will be located at an elevation well away from flood plains and riparian 
areas and environmental issues are expected to be negligible.  During the design process, the 
proposed tank site will be evaluated for other potential environmental issues. 

4.6 Institutional Feasibility 

RWSD has provided water service to customers within the district boundary for over 40 years.  
During that time, the District has demonstrated a high level of Technical, Managerial and Financial 
capacity. 
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Technical – The district has a highly qualified and experienced staff that has consistently 
demonstrated the ability to operate a system that meets all Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) 
requirements. 

Managerial – RWSD is a Title 32 District authorized to provide water service to its customers.  The 
District is managed by a full time manager under the direction of its board of directors. 

Financial – the District prepares annual budgets and audits in accordance with state statutes and 
performs an annual rate review.  In addition, the district regularly updates its planning documents 
including Master Plan, Asset Management Plan, and Capital Improvement Plan.    These planning 
documents enable the District to develop a financial plan that addresses all of the District’s needs, 
without shortfalls or unexpected financial requirements. 

The system additions required to provide service under the proposed project would be operated 
and maintained by the District as part of its routine system operations and maintenance activities.  
The District currently provides water service to approximately 3,400 EQRs.  The addition of 251 
EQRs under the proposed project is not expected to create any TMF issues of concern. 

The PVHSD is governed by the same board of directors as the RWSD, and day to day operation of 
the Subdistrict will be accomplished by the existing RWSD staff.  All of the TMF requirements 
associated with the proposed project will be handled by RWSD/PVHSD Board, and the existing 
RWSD staff.  No new TMF capacity for either RWSD or PVHSD is required to support the proposed 
project. 
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5   FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS 

The project will be paid for using a combination of loans, cash contributions by Douglas County, 
and direct payment of fees by the customers to be served by the project.  Table 3 presents a 
breakdown of the sources of funds to be used for the project. 

Table 3-Financing or Payment Responsibility 

 Project 
Costs 

CWPRDA 
Loan 

CWCB Loan Douglas 
County 

RWSD 

Shared Infrastructure $4,322,100 $4,322,100    
Internal Infrastructure $3,992,361 $877,900  $3,114,461  
Financing Fees and Debt 
Reserve 

$300,000   $300,000  

RWSD Fees $2,698,250    $2,698,250 
Water Supply $2,473,605  $2,226,245 $247,361  
Election $30,000   $15,000 $15,000 
Engineering $1,144,000   $1,144,000  

Totals $14,960,316 $5,200,000 $2,226,245 $4,820,822 $2,713,250 
 

A loan from the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) will be 
used to pay for a portion of the infrastructure to be constructed.  The requested loan from the 
Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) will be used to pay for the required water supply.  
Both loans will be taken out by the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water and 
Sanitation District.  The CWRPDA loan will be repaid through property taxes.  The CWCB loan will 
be repaid with a combination of property taxes and user surcharges.  Douglas County has 
advanced funds to pay for engineering and a portion of the infrastructure construction.  That 
portion of the funds associated with construction will be repaid out of connection fees.  The 
portion of Douglas County fees associated with engineering will not be repaid.  RWSD will initially 
defer the majority of its inclusion fees which would normally be due shortly after the vote to 
include, and allow those fees to be paid with user surcharges. 
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The cost of construction and all required fees will be paid for by the customers of the Plum Valley 
Heights Subdistrict.  Table 4 presents the fees to be paid by PVHSD customers: 

 Table 4-Property Owner Impact 

Description Amount 
RWSD Inclusion Fees (Partial, within 60 days of inclusion)-One Time Fee $500.00 
Tap Fees Upon Connection- One Time Fee  
  RWSD $7550.00 
  Douglas County $14,649.00 
Estimated Monthly Property Tax Increase $126.00 
Estimated Monthly User Fee Surcharge $68.00 
Service Line (Curb Stop to House)- One Time Fee $2,000.00 

 

The costs presented in Table 4 are specific to the project, and are in addition to the normal user 
charges applicable to all RWSD customers.  Current RWSD user charges include a flat fee of   
$32.14/mo., consumption charge of $5.18/1000 gallons, and capital reserve surcharge of 
$2.00/mo. 

Financial Impacts: 

The increased user charges required for debt service will have an impact on existing and future 
customers.  The United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) affordability criteria 
indicate the user charges for water are considered affordable if the annual user charge is less than 
2.5% of the MHI.  The estimated annual cost of water service under the proposed project is $3181 
including user charges, and user surcharges and property taxes for debt service, or 3.1% of MHI.  
The estimated charges, which are somewhat above EPA guidelines, are not expected to cause 
undue hardship to customers because the MHI in the proposed service area is substantially above 
the national average.  In addition, the residents of the proposed service area voted 
overwhelmingly in favor of the proposed project, including the estimated charges.  

TABOR Issues: 

Entering into the loan to finance the project will not result in any TABOR issues for the District.  As 
a part of the election, service area residents voted to exempt the Subdistrict from TABOR’s annual 
spending and revenue limitations.   

Collateral:  

The loan will be secured by a pledge of user charge and property tax revenue.  User charges and 
the debt service mill levy will be established when actual project costs are known. 
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Sponsor Creditworthiness: 

As a newly formed entity, the project sponsor, Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough 
Water and Sanitation District, has not yet conducted an audit of its financial statements.  Annual 
auditing of the Subdistrict’s financial statements will begin as soon as the proposed project is 
under way, resulting in significant financial transactions.  The creditworthiness of the Subdistrict 
was viewed favorably by the CWRPDA in their approval of a $5.2M loan to the Subdistrict. 

Since PVH is a Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, and will be controlled 
by the same Board of Directors using similar financial policies, it is useful to review the financial 
status of the District.  The District’s financial audits 2011, 2012, and 2013 are included in Appendix 
I.  In addition, the District’s unaudited financial statement, dated December 31, 2014, is included 
in Appendix J. 
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6 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Overall feasibility of project: 

The proposed project addresses a significant need to provide a permanent, renewable water 
supply to customers in the PVH Subdistrict.  The project has the support of numerous 
public/private entities including Douglas County, the City of Aurora, Roxborough Water and 
Sanitation District, and the Associations in the developments to be served by the PVH Subdistrict.  
In addition, residents in the area to be served voted overwhelmingly in favor of the project. 

No significant barriers to the proposed project have been identified.  The project is expected to 
include only normal project activities such as acquisition of right-of-way, construction and 
financing. 

Feasibility of Loan Repayment: 

Review of financial documents presents a positive picture of the feasibility of loan repayment as 
noted below: 

1. The Subdistrict has sufficient existing customer base to support debt service in a 
relatively affordable manner. Successful financial performance is not dependent on 
growth. 

2. The Subdistrict has already taken steps towards financing the project in the form of 
obtaining financing from Douglas County, Roxborough Water and Sanitation District and 
the Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority. 

3. The Subdistrict will be controlled by the same Board of Directors that has a proven 
financial track record with the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. 
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ICENOGLE | SEAVER | POGUE 
A Professional Corporation 

Attorneys at Law 
4725 South Monaco Street, Suite 225 

Denver, Colorado 80237 
Telephone:  303.292.9100 
Facsimile:  303.292.9101 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO :  Larry Moore, General Manager 
  Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
   
FROM :  Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 
   
RE : Subdistrict Creation and Financing  
 
DATE : January 7, 2015 
 
 
 This memorandum summarizes the process for the creation of a subdistrict by, and within 
the boundaries of, a special district and the financing mechanisms available for a subdistrict to 
finance services, programs, and facilities to be furnished within the boundaries of the subdistrict. 
 

I. Creation of a Subdistrict 
 

The Special District Act (“Act”), specifically C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1)(f)(I) of the Act, 
provides the board of directors (“Board”) of a special district with the power to divide the special 
district into one or more areas, each area to be known as a subdistrict, consistent with the 
services, programs, and facilities to be furnished within the area.  A subdistrict is established 
within the boundaries of a special district via resolution of the Board adopted at a regular or 
special meeting of the Board and after publication of notice of the purpose, place, time and date 
of the public meeting.  C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1.5)(a).  

 
A resolution to create a subdistrict may not be adopted if a petition objecting to the 

creation of the subdistrict is signed by the owners of taxable real and personal property that 
equals more than fifty percent of the total assessed valuation of all taxable real and person 
property within the proposed boundaries of the subdistrict and is filed with the special district no 
later than five days prior to the Board’s public meeting.  C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1.5)(b).  
Furthermore, written consent is required from the owner or owners of any single parcel of land 
within the proposed boundaries of the subdistrict having an assessed valuation constituting 
twenty-five percent or more of the total assessed valuation of all real property within the 
boundaries of the proposed subdistrict, and from a corporate entity owning a single parcel of land 
within the proposed boundaries of the subdistrict having an assessed valuation constituting five 
percent or more of the total assessed valuation of all real property within the boundaries of the 
proposed subdistrict.  C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1.5)(c).   

 
Upon the adoption of a resolution approving the establishment of a subdistrict, the Board 

is required to provide notice to the board of county commissioners (“BOCC”) of each county 



 

2 
 

that has territory included with the special district and the governing body of any municipality 
(“Municipality”) that has adopted a resolution of approval of the special district.  C.R.S.§ 32-1-
1101(1)(f)(I).  The BOCC or Municipality may elect, within thirty days after such notification, to 
treat the action as a material modification of the special district’s service plan pursuant to the 
Act.  Id.   

 
 Upon establishment, the subdistrict shall be an independent quasi-municipal corporation, 
shall have all rights, privileges, and immunities of the special district, and shall be subject to the 
service plan of the special district.  C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1)(f)(II).  The special district’s Board 
serves as the ex officio board of directors of the subdistrict and the presiding officers of the 
special district’s Board are the ex officio officers of the subdistrict.  C.R.S. § 32-1-
1101(1)(f)(III).   
 
 Upon voter authorization from the eligible electors of the subdistrict, the subdistrict may 
levy taxes on property within its boundaries and incur debt.  C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1.5)(d).  Taxes 
levied by the subdistrict are in addition to any other taxes imposed by the special district.  Id.  
The Subdistrict may finance its activities from the proceeds of general obligation bonds issued 
by the subdistrict, and repay debt from legally available revenues of the subdistrict including 
fees, rates, tolls, charges, and tax revenues.  Any debt issued by the subdistrict is treated 
separately from the debt of the special district and is not treated as debt of the special district.  
C.R.S. § 32-1-1101(1)(f)(III).  However, the total debt of the special district and all subdistricts 
cannot exceed any debt limits set forth in the special district’s service plan.  Id. 
 

  In addition, the subdistrict may establish, via resolution, a water activity enterprise 
(“Enterprise”), which may be used for pursuing and financing water activities, such as the 
construction, operation, repair and replacement of water or wastewater facilities.  C.R.S. § 37-
45.1-103(1).  The Board of the subdistrict is also the board of the Enterprise.  C.R.S. § 37-45.1-
103(3).  The Enterprise may finance its activities from the proceeds of revenue bonds, notes, or 
other obligations issued by the Enterprise and payable from the revenues derived or to be derived 
from the function, service, benefits, or facility or the combined functions, services, benefits, or 
facilities of the Enterprise or from any other available funds of the Enterprise, including fees, 
rates, tolls and other charges imposed by the Enterprise on the property within the subdistrict.  
C.R.S. § 37-45.1-104(2), C.R.S.  The Enterprise may also contract with Colorado Water 
Conservation Board, the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority, or any 
other governmental source of funding for loans, grants or other financial assistance related to 
water activity enterprise functions.  C.R.S. § 37-45.1-106(1).   

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

RWSD/City of Aurora 150 IGA 

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

Alternative 2 Cost Estimates 



Alternative 2 - Basic Service

SHARED INFRASTRUCTURE

Description Project Cost
Transmission Main 2,566,500$      
Water Storage Tank 1,755,600$      

Total 4,322,100$     

INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 658,500$         
Chatfield East 1,902,000$      
TRIP 662,100$         
Plum Valley Heights 769,761$         

Total 3,992,361$      

ENGINEERING / ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Description Project Cost
Shared Infrastructure 531,000$         
Chatfield Acres 101,000$         
Chatfield East 292,000$         
TRIP 101,000$         
Plum Valley Heights 119,000$         

Total 1,144,000$      

RWSD FEES 

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 483,750$         
Chatfield East 1,107,250$      
TRIP 795,500$         
Plum Valley Heights 311,750$         

Total 2,698,250$      

WATER SUPPLY

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 443,475$         
Chatfield East 1,015,065$      
TRIP 729,270$         
Plum Valley Heights 285,795$         

Total 2,473,605$      

TOTALS

Description Project Cost
Shared Infrastructure 4,322,100$      
Internal Infrastructure 3,992,361$      
Financing and Election 330,000$         
Engineering Fees 1,144,000$      
RWSD Fees 2,698,250$      
Water Supply 2,473,605$      

Total 14,960,316$    

From Service Study Cost Estimate 7/7/2014
Summary of Project Costs

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03‐23‐15 by BG
Alternate 2 ‐ Basic Service 1 of 4



Alternative 2 - Basic Service

Shared Infrastructure
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Transmission Main from RWSD WTP 
6-inch Pipeline 20,000 lf 65$                        1,300,000$         
Railroad Bore 150 lf 390$                      58,500$              
Highway 85 Bore 300 lf 390$                      117,000$            
Plum Creek Crossing 600 lf 130$                      78,000$              

Construction Subtotal 1,553,500$         
Contingency (25%) 389,000$            
Transmission Main from RWSD WTP Construction Total 1,942,500$        

Easements / Land Acquisition 600,000 sf 1.04$                     624,000$            
Transmission Main from RWSD WTP Total 2,566,500$         

Water Storage Tank
260,000 gallon buried concrete water storage tank 260,000 gal 4$                          1,134,000$         
6-inch pipeline from tank to Dist. System 3,000 lf 65$                        195,000$            

Construction Subtotal 1,329,000$         
Contingency (25%) 333,000$            
Water Storage Tank Construction Total 1,662,000$        

Easements / Land Acquisition 90,000 sf 1.04$                     93,600$              
Water Storage Tank Total 1,755,600$         

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 14.7 % 531,000$            
Shared Infrastructure Engineering Total 531,000$            
Shared Infrastructure Total 4,853,100$         

Internal Infrastructure 
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure
8,100 LF of 6-inch plus appurtenances* 1 ls 526,500$               526,500$            

Construction Subtotal 526,500$            
Contingency (25%) 132,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 658,500$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 15.3 % 101,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 101,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Total 759,500$            

Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure
23,400 LF of 6-inch plus appurtenances* 1 ls 1,521,000$            1,521,000$         

Construction Subtotal 1,521,000$         
Contingency (25%) 381,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 1,902,000$        

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 15.4 % 292,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 292,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructur Total 2,194,000$         
* K/J 2013 Report quantity of piping used and the pricing for 8-inch to 6-inch was adjusted.

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict

From Service Study Cost Estimate 7/7/2014
Detailed Project Costs

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 2 ‐ Basic Service 2 of 4



Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure
6" Pipes 2,000 lf 65$                        130,000$            
PRV Vault 2 ea 32,500$                 65,000$              
8'' Valves 10 ea 6,500$                   65,000$              
Fire Hydrant Replacement 7 ea 7,800$                   54,600$              
Meter /Service Lines 33 ea 6,500$                   214,500$            

Construction Subtotal 529,100$            
Contingency (25%) 133,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 662,100$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 15.3 % 101,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 101,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Total 763,100$            

Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure (Using Modified Cost and Quantities from Mulhern MRE Report from Aug 2012)
Pothole Maintenance 10 ea 415$                      4,147$                
4'' PVC (C900 Class 150, DR 18) w/ bedding, backfill, etc. 8000 lf 59$                        468,000$            
4'' Valve w/ epoxy coating, bedding, etc. (PVH S. Trail Rd.) 20 ea 1,463$                   29,250$              
Tie into existing 16'' line at RWSD WTP 1 ea 10,400$                 10,400$              
2'' Air Relief Valve 1 ea 2,981$                   2,981$                
2'' Blowoff assembly 1 ea 2,981$                   2,981$                
12x8'' Tee w/ Epoxy Coating 2 ea 1,105$                   2,210$                
6'' 45 degree bend w/ Epoxy Coating 17 ea 520$                      8,840$                
6'' 11.25 degree bend with Epoxy Coating 9 ea 520$                      4,680$                
Street Cut and Repair (15% of PVH Roads) 330 ton 130$                      42,900$              
Vehicle Construction Entrance 2 ea 3,250$                   6,500$                
Stabilized Staging Area 2500 sy 3.3$                       8,125$                
Silt Fence 4624 lf 2.0$                       9,017$                
Reinforced Rock Berm 250 lf 26$                        6,500$                
Concrete Washout Area 2 ea 715$                      1,430$                
Street Maintenance 1.5 lm 5,200$                   7,800$                

Construction Subtotal 615,761$            
Contingency (25%) 154,000$            
Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 769,761$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 15.5 % 119,000$            
Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 119,000$            
Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure Total 888,761$            

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 2 ‐ Basic Service 3 of 4



RWSD Fees
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price
Chatfield Acres Fees

Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 45 EQR 3,200$                   144,000$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 45 EQR 5,900$                   265,500$            
Water Cost** 45 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 45 EQR 1,650$                   74,250$              

Chatfield Acres Fees Total 483,750$            

Chatfield East Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 103 EQR 3,200$                   329,600$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 103 EQR 5,900$                   607,700$            
Water Cost** 103 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 103 EQR 1,650$                   169,950$            

Chatfield East Fees Total 1,107,250$         

Titan Road Industrial Park Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 74 EQR 3,200$                   236,800$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 74 EQR 5,900$                   436,600$            
Water Cost** 74 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 74 EQR 1,650$                   122,100$            

Titan Road Industrial Park Fees Total 795,500$            

Plum Valley Heights Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 29 EQR 3,200$                   92,800$              
RWSD System Development Charge* 29 EQR 5,900$                   171,100$            
Water Cost** 29 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 29 EQR 1,650$                   47,850$              

Plum Valley Heights Fees Total 311,750$            
*Note: Use of RWSD System Limited to WTP only. RWSD FEES TOTAL 2,698,250$         
**Note: Assumes costs associated with water supply paid by Douglas County

Water Supply Costs
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Chatfield Acres
Water Supply 45 EQR 9,855$                   443,475$            

Chatfield Acres Water Supply Cost Total 443,475$           

Chatfield East
Water Supply 103 EQR 9,855$                   1,015,065$         

Chatfield East Water Supply Cost Total 1,015,065$        

Titan Road Industrial Park
Water Supply 74 EQR 9,855$                   729,270$            

Titan Road Industrial Park Water Supply Total 729,270$           

Plum Valley Heights 
Water Supply 29 EQR 9,855$                   285,795$            

Plum Valley Heights Water Supply Total 285,795$            
References : WATER SUPPLY TOTAL 2,473,605$         

Titan Road Industrial Complex data from "Titan Road Industrial Park Water System Study" (2000, Carroll & Lange, Inc.)

Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure data from "Northwest Douglas County Rural 
Water Alternatives" (2012, Mulhern MRE, Inc.) 

Chatfield East/Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure data from "Chatfield Acres and Chatfield East 
Subdivisions: Water System Study"  (2012, Kennedy-Jenks)

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 2 ‐ Basic Service 4 of 4
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Alternative 3 Cost Estimates 



Alternative 3 - Extended Service

Summary of Project Costs
From Service Study Cost Estimate 06/06/14

SHARED INFRASTRUCTURE

Description Project Cost
Transmission Main from RWSD WTP 3,137,000$      
Transmission Main : Southern Loop 5,202,000$      
Water Storage Tank 3,372,000$      

Total 11,711,000$    

INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 632,980$         
Chatfield East 1,619,620$      
TRIP 597,000$         
Plum Valley Heights 347,288$         

Total 3,196,888$      

ENGINEERING / ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Description Project Cost
Shared Infrastructure 2,088,000$      
Chatfield Acres 127,000$         
Chatfield East 324,000$         
TRIP 120,000$         
Plum Valley Heights 69,000$           

Total 2,728,000$      
RWSD FEES 

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 483,750$         
Chatfield East 1,107,250$      
TRIP 795,500$         
Plum Valley Heights 311,750$         
Future Customers 3,429,250$      

Total 6,127,500$      

WATER SUPPLY

Description Project Cost
Chatfield Acres 443,475$         
Chatfield East 1,015,065$      
TRIP 729,270$         
Plum Valley Heights 285,795$         
Future Customers 3,143,745$      

Total 5,617,350$      

TOTALS

Description Project Cost
Shared Infrastructure 11,711,000$    
Internal Infrastructure 3,196,888$      
Engineering Fees 2,728,000$      
RWSD Fees 6,127,500$      
Water Supply 5,617,350$      

Total 29,380,738$    

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 3 ‐ Extended Service 1 of 4



Alternative 3 - Extended Service

Detailed Project Costs
From Service Study Cost Estimate 06/06/14

Shared Infrastructure
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Transmission Main from RWSD WTP 
12-inch Pipeline from PVH to Chatfields 14,000 lf 110$                      1,540,000$         
6-inch Pipeline from RWSD WTP to PVH 6,000 lf 50$                        300,000$            
Railroad Bore 150 lf 500$                      75,000$              
Highway 85 Bore 300 lf 500$                      150,000$            
Plum Creek Crossing 600 lf 100$                      60,000$              

Construction Subtotal 2,125,000$         
Contingency (25%) 532,000$            
Transmission Main from RWSD WTP  Construction Total 2,657,000$        

Easements / Land Acquisition 600,000 sf 0.80$                     480,000$            
Transmission Main from RWSD WTP  Total 3,137,000$         

Transmission Main - Southern Loop
12-inch Pipeline Southern Loop 30,000 lf 110$                      3,300,000$         
Railroad Bore 150 lf 500$                      75,000$              
Highway 85 Bore 300 lf 500$                      150,000$            
Plum Creek Crossing 600 lf 100$                      60,000$              

Construction Subtotal 3,585,000$         
Contingency (25%) 897,000$            
Transmission Main - Southern Loop Construction Total 4,482,000$        

Easements / Land Acquisition 900,000 sf 0.80$                     720,000$            
Transmission Main - Southern Loop Total 5,202,000$         

Water Storage Tank
770,000 gallon buried concrete water storage tank 770,000 tank 3$                          2,310,000$         
12-inch pipeline from tank to Dist. System 3,000 lf 110$                      330,000$            

Construction Subtotal 2,640,000$         
Contingency (25%) 660,000$            
Water Storage Tank Construction Total 3,300,000$        

Easements / Land Acquisition 90,000 sf 0.80$                     72,000$              
Water Storage Tank Total 3,372,000$         

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 19.1 % 2,088,000$         
Shared Infrastructure Engineering Total 2,088,000$         
Shared Infrastructure Grand Total 13,799,000$       

Internal Infrastructure
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure
8,100 LF of 8-inch plus appurtenances 1 ls 505,980$               505,980$            

Construction Subtotal 505,980$            
Contingency (25%) 127,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 632,980$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 20.1 % 127,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 127,000$            
Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure Total 759,980$            

Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure
23,400 LF of 8-inch plus appurtenances 1 ls 1,295,620$            1,295,620$         

Construction Subtotal 1,295,620$         
Contingency (25%) 324,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 1,619,620$        

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 20 % 324,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 324,000$            
Chatfield East Internal Infrastructure Total 1,943,620$         

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 3 ‐ Extended Service 2 of 4



Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure
8" Pipes 2,000 lf 85$                        170,000$            
PRV Vault 2 ea 25,000$                 50,000$              
8'' Valves 10 ea 5,000$                   50,000$              
Fire Hydrant Replacement 7 ea 6,000$                   42,000$              
Meter /Service Lines 33 ea 5,000$                   165,000$            

Construction Subtotal 477,000$            
Contingency (25%) 120,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 597,000$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 20.1 % 120,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 120,000$            
Titan Road Industrial Park Internal Infrastructure Total 717,000$            

Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure (Using Cost and Quantities from Mulhern MRE Report from Aug 2012)
Pothole Maintenance 10 ea 319$                      3,190$                
4'' PVC (C900 Class 150, DR 18) w/ bedding, backfill, etc. 8000 lf 20$                        160,000$            
4'' Valve w/ epoxy coating, bedding, etc. (PVH S. Trail Rd.) 20 ea 750$                      15,000$              
Tie into existing 16'' line at RWSD WTP 1 ea 8,000$                   8,000$                
3/4'' Service Taps (up to 100' LF) 29 ea 750$                      21,750$              
2'' Air Relief Valve 1 ea 2,293$                   2,293$                
2'' Blowoff assembly 1 ea 2,293$                   2,293$                
12x8'' Tee w/ Epoxy Coating 2 ea 300$                      600$                   
6'' 45 degree bend w/ Epoxy Coating 17 ea 225$                      3,825$                
6'' 11.25 degree bend with Epoxy Coating 9 ea 225$                      2,025$                
Street Cut and Repair (15% of PVH Roads) 330 ton 85$                        28,050$              
Vehicle Construction Entrance 2 ea 2,488$                   4,976$                
Stabilized Staging Area 2500 sy 2.5$                       6,250$                
Silt Fence 4624 lf 1.5$                       6,936$                
Reinforced Rock Berm 250 lf 20$                        5,000$                
Concrete Washout Area 2 ea 550$                      1,100$                
Street Maintenance 1.5 lm 4,000$                   6,000$                

Construction Subtotal 277,288$            
Contingency (25%) 70,000$              
Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure Construction Total 347,288$           

Design & Construction Inspection Engineering 19.9 % 69,000$              
Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure Engineering Total 69,000$              
Project Phase Grand Total 416,288$            

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 3 ‐ Extended Service 3 of 4



RWSD Fees
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price
Titan Road Industrial Park Fees

Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 45 EQR 3,200$                   144,000$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 45 EQR 5,900$                   265,500$            
Water Cost** 45 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 45 EQR 1,650$                   74,250$              

Titan Road Industrial Park Fees Total 483,750$            

Chatfield East Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 103 EQR 3,200$                   329,600$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 103 EQR 5,900$                   607,700$            
Water Cost** 103 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 103 EQR 1,650$                   169,950$            

Chatfield East Fees Total 1,107,250$         

Titan Road Industrial Park Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 74 EQR 3,200$                   236,800$            
RWSD System Development Charge* 74 EQR 5,900$                   436,600$            
Water Cost** 74 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 74 EQR 1,650$                   122,100$            

Titan Road Industrial Park Fees Total 795,500$            

Plum Valley Heights Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 29 EQR 3,200$                   92,800$              
RWSD System Development Charge* 29 EQR 5,900$                   171,100$            
Water Cost** 29 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 29 EQR 1,650$                   47,850$              

Plum Valley Heights Fees Total 311,750$            

Future Customers Fees
Inclusion Fee (RWSD) 319 EQR 3,200$                   1,020,800$         
RWSD System Development Charge* 319 EQR 5,900$                   1,882,100$         
Water Cost** 319 EQR -$                       -$                    
Permit Fee 319 EQR 1,650$                   526,350$            

Future Customers Fees Total 3,429,250$         
*Note: Use of RWSD System Limited to WTP only. TOTAL 6,127,500$         
**Note: Assumes costs associated with water supply paid by Douglas County

Water Supply Costs
Description Quantity Units Unit Cost

Price

Chatfield Acres
Water Supply 45 EQR 9,855$                   443,475$            

Chatfield Acres Water Supply Cost Total 443,475$           

Chatfield East
Water Supply 103 EQR 9,855$                   1,015,065$         

Chatfield East Water Supply Cost Total 1,015,065$        

Titan Road Industrial Park
Water Supply 74 EQR 9,855$                   729,270$            

Titan Road Industrial Park Water Supply Total Total 729,270$           

Plum Valley Heights 
Water Supply 29 EQR 9,855$                   285,795$            

Plum Valley Heights Water Supply Total 285,795$            

Future Customers
Water Supply 319 EQR 9,855$                   3,143,745$         

Future Customers Water Supply Cost Total 3,143,745$         
References : TOTAL 5,617,350$         

Titan Road Industrial Complex data from "Titan Road Industrial Park Water System Study" (2000, Carroll & Lange, Inc.)

Chatfield East/Chatfield Acres Internal Infrastructure data from "Chatfield Acres and Chatfield East 
Subdivisions: Water System Study"  (2012, Kennedy-Jenks)

Plum Valley Heights Internal Infrastructure data from "Northwest Douglas County Rural 
Water Alternatives" (2012, Mulhern MRE, Inc.) 

TST Infrastructure, LLC
Modified 03/23/15 by BG
Alternate 3 ‐ Extended Service 4 of 4
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Cash Flow Projections 



Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District
Estimated Cash Flow 2014‐2036

Estimated Revenue
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 Total

PVHSD Grant 50,000 50,000
RWSD Transfer of Funds 50,000 50,000
Loan Financing Fees (DC) 50,000 250,000 300,000
Douglas County Costs Advanced 1,688,411 1,688,411 3,376,822
Tap Fees PVHSD 2,219,869 1,687,100 1,664,902 5,571,871
Inclusion Fees PVHSD 125,500 125,500
CWCB Loan Proceeds PVHSD 2,226,245 2,226,245
CWPDRA Loan Proceeds PVHSD 5,200,000 5,200,000
Douglas County Engineering Subsidy 70,000 574,000 250,000 250,000 1,144,000
Property Taxes PVHSD 380,952 384,762 388,609 392,495 396,420 400,384 404,388 408,432 412,516 416,642 420,808 425,016 429,266 433,559 437,895 442,273 446,696 451,163 455,675 460,232 8,388,184
PVHSD Surcharge 188,250 225,900 228,159 230,441 232,745 235,072 237,423 239,797 242,195 244,617 247,064 249,534 252,029 254,550 257,095 259,666 262,263 264,886 267,534 204,564 204,564 5,028,349

Total  Estimated Revenue 170,000 824,000 9,728,406 4,765,132 2,300,021 2,283,952 625,240 631,493 637,808 644,186 650,627 657,134 663,705 670,342 677,046 683,816 690,654 697,561 704,536 711,582 718,698 660,239 664,796 31,460,971

Estimated Expenses

Douglas County Tap Fees 1,464,869 1,113,300 1,098,652 3,676,821
RWSD  Fees 125,500 755,000 573,800 566,250 2,020,550
Loan Financing Fees 50,000 250,000 300,000
Engineering Fees 70,000 574,000 250,000 250,000 1,144,000
Election Costs 30,000 30,000
Water Supply 1,236,803 1,236,802 2,473,605
PVHSD Construction Project 4,157,231 4,157,231 8,314,462
CWPDRA PVHSD Debt Service 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 380,952 7,619,040
CWCB‐ PVHSD Debt Service 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 133,272 2,665,440

Total Estimated Expenses 150,000 824,000 5,769,534 8,378,126 2,201,324 2,179,126 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 514,224 28,243,918

Estimated Annual Cash Flow 20,000 0 3,958,872 ‐3,612,994 98,697 104,826 111,016 117,269 123,584 129,962 136,403 142,910 149,481 156,118 162,822 169,592 176,430 183,337 190,312 197,358 204,474 146,015 150,572 3,217,053

Cumulative  20,000 20,000 3,978,872 365,878 464,575 569,400 680,416 797,685 921,269 1,051,230 1,187,634 1,330,544 1,480,025 1,636,143 1,798,964 1,968,556 2,144,987 2,328,323 2,518,636 2,715,993 2,920,467 3,066,482 3,217,053



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix F 

RWSD/Douglas County Water Treatment IGA 



































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix G 

PVHSD & RWSD Election Results 

































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix H 

RWSD/Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict IGA 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
Littleton, Colorado 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund, of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District as of December 31, 2011, and the 
respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of GASB 
Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, in 2011. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages i through 
vii and 21 through 22 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
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consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Roxborough Water and Sanitation District’s financial statements as a whole. 
The individual fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The individual fund financial 
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
 
 
 
April 18, 2012 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 
As management of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District (the District), we offer readers 
of the District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the District for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Assets exceeded liabilities by $59,663,025 at the close of the fiscal year. Of this amount, 
$22,363,395 is unrestricted and available to meet ongoing and future obligations of the 
District. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $6,896,451. 

• Total net assets increased by $1,417,424. 
• Total cash and investments decreased by $1,106,472 as compared to the prior year. 
• General fund expenditures decreased by $28,187 as compared to the prior year. 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was     

$ 491,704 or 177.99% of total general fund expenditures. 
• Total debt decreased by $385,000 or 4.91% during the current fiscal year. The reason for 

this decrease was the scheduled payment of principal on long-term debt.  
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods.  
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are 
principally to be supported by ad valorem taxes (governmental activities) from other functions 
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include the 
financing, construction of, and maintenance of public infrastructure improvements constructed or 
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acquired by the District. The business-type activities of the District include water and sewer 
facilities construction, maintenance and operations. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1-2 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be 
divided into two categories – Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. The governmental funds 
use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  During the year ended December 31, 2011, the 
District implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for each of the funds - general fund and debt service 
fund - all of which are considered to be major funds. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3-5 of this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer 
operations. These services are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the water and sewer operations, which are considered to be major funds of the 
District. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 6-9 of this report. 
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Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to financial statements can be found on pages 10-20 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information. The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for 
its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement for this fund has been provided as required 
supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The general fund budget 
statements and notes are found on pages 21-22 of this report. 
 
Other information. The report includes individual fund schedules. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided in this section for the debt service fund, the water fund and the 
sewer fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. The budget statements are found on 
pages 23 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. The District’s assets exceeded liabilities by $59,663,025 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. Of this amount $22,363,395 is unrestricted and is available to meet the District’s 
ongoing financial obligations. 
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Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

8,576,212$   22,173,523$ 30,749,735$ 8,260,002$   23,300,853$ 31,560,855$ 
62,491          -                62,491          66,954          -                66,954          

1,844            39,111,201   39,113,045   3,090            36,902,638   36,905,728   
Total Assets 8,640,547     61,284,724   69,925,271   8,330,046     60,203,491   68,533,537   

2,194,313     571,024        2,765,337     2,606,273     375,085        2,981,358     
7,395,497     101,412        7,496,909     7,813,008     85,960          7,898,968     

Total Liabilit ies 9,589,810     672,436        10,262,246   10,419,281   461,045        10,880,326   

Assets, Net of Debt (8,208,493)   39,111,201   30,902,708   (8,208,493)   36,902,638   28,694,145   
6,396,922     -                6,396,922     6,920,696     -                6,920,696     

862,308        21,501,087   22,363,395   (801,438)      23,432,198   22,630,760   
Total Net Assets (949,263)$    60,612,288$ 59,663,025$ (2,089,235)$ 60,334,836$ 58,245,601$ 

Unrestricted Net Assets

Capital Assets, net

Current Liabilit ies
Long-Term Obligations

Net Assets Invested in Capital

Restricted Net Assets

Statement of Net Assets

2011 2010

Current Assets
Other Assets

 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

-$              4,774,225$   4,774,225$ -$             4,742,198$   4,742,198$   

Contributions -                70,158          70,158        -               123,071        123,071        

Contributions -                577,459        577,459      -               864,589        864,589        

1,954,993      -                1,954,993   1,979,343     -                1,979,343     

Taxes 165,987         -                165,987      126,278        -                126,278        
12,729           70,965          83,694        15,476          78,324          93,800          

-                -                -              46                 -                46                 
Total Revenue 2,133,709      5,492,807     7,626,516   2,121,143     5,808,182     7,929,325     

298,616         -                298,616      424,981        -                424,981        

Debt 270,861         -                270,861      390,876        -                390,876        
-                5,639,615     5,639,615   -               5,909,768     5,909,768     

Total Expenses 569,477         5,639,615     6,209,092   815,857        5,909,768     6,725,625     

1,564,232      (146,808)       1,417,424   1,305,286     (101,586)       1,203,700     

(424,260)       424,260        -              (346,929)      346,929        -                

1,139,972      277,452        1,417,424   958,357        245,343        1,203,700     

(2,089,235)    60,334,836   58,245,601 (3,047,592)   60,089,493   57,041,901   
(949,263)$     60,612,288$ 59,663,025 (2,089,235)$ 60,334,836$ 58,245,601$ Net Assets - Ending

Net Assets - Beginning

Change in Net Assets

Transfers

Water/Sewer Facilit ies

Interest on Long-Term
General Government

Expenses

Revenue

Excess

General Revenue

Capital Grants and 

Other
Investment Income

Specific Ownership
Property Taxes

Program Revenue

Operating Grants and 
Charges for Services

 



v 
 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the District’s net assets by 
$1,139,972, several highlights are as follows: 
 

• Property taxes decreased $24,350 (1.23%) over the prior year.  
• Specific ownership taxes increased $39,709. 
• General Government expenses decreased by $126,365 this year. 

 
Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the District’s net assets by $277,452, 
mainly due to the contribution of water and sewer facilities. Some of the key elements of the 
change in net assets are as follows: 
 

• Service charges increased $32,027 (0.68%) over prior year.  
• Investment income decreased $10,106 due to decreasing interest rates. 
• Total operating expenses are decreased $270,153 as a result of an increase in depreciation 

$63,273, and a decrease in operations expenses $(385,005), and an increase in personnel 
expenses of $51,579. 

 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful 
in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of 
the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $6,896,451, of which $491,704 constitutes unassigned fund balance, 
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion within the parameters established 
for each fund. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $491,704 out of a total fund balance of 
$545,029. In compliance with an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, the 
district has established an emergency reserve representing 3% of qualifying expenditures. At 
December 31, 2011, the emergency reserve was $45,500. 
 
The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $6,351,422, all of which is restricted for the 
repayment of long-term indebtedness. The long term loans payable as of December 31, 2011 is   
$ 7,450,000. 
 
On November 1, 2011 the district voted in favor of Ballot Issue 5A.  This positive vote 
authorizes the district debt to be increased by a total of $ 6,500,000 for the purpose of being the 
repayment of loans advanced from the district’s water fund to the district’s sewer fund to finance 
a portion of the costs of improvements to the district’s sanitary sewer collection and transmission 
system.  This debt is to be repaid from the district’s current property tax fund balance established 
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by the district pursuant to voter authorization obtained at the November 2002 election and 
without future increases in the annual taxes authorized by the November 2002 election. 
 
 
Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the proprietary fund at the end of the year amounted to $21,501,087. 
The total net assets of the District’s proprietary funds as of December 31, 2011 are $60,612,288. 
Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion 
of the District’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The District’s total expenditures for 2011 did not exceed the final budgeted appropriation. The 
difference between the original and final budgeted revenue of $894,657 and the actual revenue of 
$896,307 was $1,650. The difference between the original budgeted expenditures of $935,160 
and the actual expenditures of $816,261 was $118,899. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The District has invested $39,111,201 in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its 
governmental and business-type activities as of the year ended December 31, 2011. This 
investment in capital assets includes water and sewer facilities, water rights and vehicles and 
equipment. Most notably were the upgrade to the water and sewer collection and distributions in 
the Pulte neighborhood. 
 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in note 4 beginning on page 
16 of this report. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total outstanding long-term debt of 
$7,790,497. Accrued compensated absences accounts for $16,091 of this amount. The remaining 
$7,774,406 is related to the District’s 2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds through the Colorado 
Water Resources and Power Development Authority (2005 CWRPDA) which are due annually 
through 2026 and pay interest rates of 3.35% semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.  
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in note 5 beginning on page 
17 of this report. 
  
Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
Government funds. The 2012 budget reflects a considerable decrease in property tax revenue of 
$413,031 as a result of decreased assessed valuations and the districts mill levy. This is a 19.74% 
decrease.  The total assessed value for 2012 is $ 126,621,550 down from $142,287,691 in 2011. 
The total mill levy in 2012 is 13.2658 mills, decreased from 14.708 mills in 2011. General fund 
expenditures are expected to increase due to natural growth of the District. The district did 
include a Capital Projects fund budget for 2012 of $23,000,000. 



vii 
 

Proprietary funds. Water and sewer sales are expected to increase slightly over 2011 as a result 
of some growth and potential rate increase. Expenditures are expected to increase slightly also. 
The District is anticipating an additional rate increase from the City of Aurora, which is the 
District’s water source, and also from the City of Littleton, which is the District’s wastewater 
treatment provider. 
 
Capital Projects. The District completed water and sewer enhancements including pipeline 
replacements in the Pulte neighborhood due to expansive and corrosive soils. The district also 
completed pump station refurbishments, the addition of backup power generation for improved 
reliability of water delivery which started in 2010, and an electrical surge protection project at 
the district’s water treatment plant was also accomplished in 2011. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Roxborough Water & 
Sanitation District’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to: Roxborough Water & Sanitation District, 6222 N. 
Roxborough Park Road, Littleton, CO 80125. 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
 
  Govern-  Business-  
   mental   Type  Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2011   2010  
 
Assets 
Cash and investments $ 6,878,080 $ 21,521,348 $ 28,399,428 $ 29,505,900 
Accounts receivable  10,546  620,873  631,419  600,458 
Property taxes receivable  1,679,761  0  1,679,761  1,995,239 
Prepaid expenses  7,825  31,302  39,127  51,648 
Debt issuance costs, net of  
 accumulated amortization  62,491  0  62,491  66,954 
Capital assets, net of 
 accumulated depreciation  1,844  39,111,201  39,113,045  36,905,728 
 
 Total Assets  8,640,547  61,284,724  69,925,271  69,125,927 
 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable  0  172,855  172,855  124,984 
Deposits   0  25,996  25,996  25,996 
Property tax abatement  0  0  0  47,962 
Deferred property taxes  1,679,761  0  1,679,761  1,995,238 
Unearned revenue  0  263,267  263,267  268,133 
Accrued interest payable  119,552  0  119,552  124,602 
Retainage payable  0  108,906  108,906  9,443 
Non current liabilities 
 Due within one year  395,000  0  395,000  385,000 
 Due in more than one year   7,395,497  101,412  7,496,909  7,898,968 
 
 Total Liabilities  9,589,810  672,436  10,262,246  10,880,326 
 
Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets 
 net of related debt  (8,208,493)  39,111,201  30,902,708  28,694,145 
Restricted for debt service  6,351,422  0  6,351,422  5,698,348 
Restricted for emergencies  45,500  0  45,500  35,000 
Unrestricted  862,308  21,501,087  22,363,395  23,818,108 
 
 Total Net Assets $ (949,263) $ 60,612,288  $ 59,663,025 $ 58,245,601 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
 
  Program Revenues  
     Charges   Operating   Capital  
     for   Grants and   Grants and  
  Expenses   Services  Contributions Contributions 
 
Function/Programs 
Primary Government 
Governmental Activities 
 General Government $ 298,616 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
 Interest on long-term debt  270,861  0  0  0 
 
Total Governmental Activities  569,477  0  0  0 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 Water   3,035,134  2,876,613  58,036  460,302 
 Sewer   2,604,481  1,897,612  12,122  117,157 
 
  Total Business-Type  
   activities  5,639,615  4,774,225  70,158  577,459 
 
Total Primary Government $ 6,209,092 $ 4,774,225 $ 70,158 $ 577,459 
 

General Revenues 
 Property taxes 
 Specific ownership taxes 
 Investment income 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 
 
 Total General Revenues and 
  Transfers 
 
 Change in net assets 
 
Net Assets, Beginning 
 
Net Assets, Ending 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
  Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets  
  Primary Government  
  Govern-   Business-        
  mental   Type   Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2011   2010  
 
 
 
 
 $ (298,616) $ 0 $ (298,616) $ (429,444) 
  (270,861)  0  (270,861)  (386,413) 
 
  (569,477)  0  (569,477)  (815,857) 
 
 
  0  359,817  359,817  141,445 
  0  (577,590)  (577,590)  (321,355) 
 
 
  0  (217,773)  (217,773)  (179,910) 
 
  (569,477)  (217,773)  (787,250)  (995,767) 
 
 
  1,954,993  0  1,954,993  1,979,343 
  165,987  0  165,987  126,278 
  12,729  70,965  83,694  93,800 
  0  0  0  46 
  (424,260)  424,260  0  0 
 
 
  1,709,449  495,225  2,204,674  2,199,467 
 
  1,139,972  277,452  1,417,424  1,203,700 
 
  (2,089,235)  60,334,836  58,245,601  57,041,901 
 
 $ (949,263) $ 60,612,288 $ 59,663,025 $ 58,245,601 
 
 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEETS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
 
        Total Governmental  
     Debt   Funds  
   General   Service   2011   2010  
 
Assets 
 Cash and investments $ 532,753 $ 6,345,327 $ 6,878,080 $ 6,205,048 
 Accounts receivable  4,451  6,095  10,546  8,067 
 Property taxes receivable  786,067  893,694  1,679,761  1,995,239 
 Prepaid items  7,825  0  7,825  51,648 
 
  Total Assets $ 1,331,096 $ 7,245,116 $ 8,576,212 $ 8,260,002 
 
Liabilities and Fund Balances 
 
Liabilities 
 Accounts payable $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 53,471 
 Due to other funds  0  0  0  47,962 
 Deferred property taxes  786,067  893,694  1,679,761  1,995,238 
 
  Total Liabilities  786,067  893,694  1,679,761  2,096,671 
 
Fund Balances 
 Nonspendable 
  Prepaids  7,825  0  7,825  51,648 
 Restricted for  
  Emergencies  45,500  0  45,500  35,000 
  Debt service  0  6,351,422  6,351,422  5,698,348 
 Unassigned  491,704  0  491,704  378,335 
 
  Total Fund Balances  545,029  6,351,422  6,896,451  6,163,331 
 
  Total Liabilities and 
   Fund Balances $ 1,331,096 $ 7,245,116 $ 8,576,212 $ 8,260,002 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
 
Total fund balances of governmental funds    $ 6,896,451 $ 6,163,331 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds. This amount is net of 
accumulated depreciation of $96,141.  1,844  3,090 

 
Long-term liabilities, including related items, 
including loans payable ($7,450,000), loan 
premium ($324,406), accrued compensated 
absences ($16,091) bond issuance costs $62,491, 
and accrued interest payable ($119,552) are not 
due and payable in the current year and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds.  (7,847,558)  (8,255,656) 

 
Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities    $ (949,263) $ (2,089,235)



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
 
        Total Governmental  
     Debt   Funds  
   General   Service   2011   2010  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 825,170 $ 1,129,823 $ 1,954,993 $ 1,979,343 
 Specific ownership taxes  68,485  97,502  165,987  126,278 
 Investment income  2,652  10,077  12,729  15,476 
 Miscellaneous revenues  0  0  0  46 
 
  Total Revenues  896,307  1,237,402  2,133,709  2,121,143 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  276,261  16,024  292,285  421,390 
 Capital outlay  0  0  0  3,844 
 Debt service 
  Principal  0  385,000  385,000  375,000 
  Interest and fiscal charges 0  299,044  299,044  310,848 
 
  Total Expenditures  276,261  700,068  976,329  1,111,082 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over 
   Expenditures  620,046  537,334  1,157,380  1,010,061 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  0  115,740  115,740  123,071 
 Transfers out  (540,000)  0  (540,000)  (470,000) 
 
  Total Other Financing 
   Sources (Uses)  (540,000)  115,740  (424,260)  (346,929) 
 
  Net change in fund 
   balances  80,046  653,074  733,120  663,132 
 
Fund balances, beginning  464,983  5,698,348  6,163,331  5,500,199 
 
Fund balances, ending $ 545,029 $ 6,351,422 $ 6,896,451 $ 6,163,331 
 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statements of activities are different because: 
 
    2011   2010  

Net change in fund balances, total governmental 
funds  $ 733,120 $ 663,132 

 
Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets 
are reported in governmental funds as 
expenditures. However, for governmental activities 
those costs are shown in the statement of net assets 
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
annual depreciation expense in the statement of 
activities. This amount represents capital outlay in 
excess of depreciation expense in the current year.  (1,246)  1,583 
 
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources 
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 
This amount is the net effect of these differences in 
the treatment of long-term debt and related items: 
amortization of loan premium $23,133, 
amortization of debt issuance costs ($4,463) and 
change in accrued interest payable $5,050.  23,720  (80,028) 
 
Loan payments $385,000 and changes in 
compensated absences ($622) expenditures in the 
governmental funds, but they change long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not 
affect the statement of activities.  384,378  373,670 

 
 Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 1,139,972  $ 958,357 

 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2011   2010  
 
Assets 
Current Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,107,076 $ 596,396 $ 12,703,472 $ 14,522,803 
 Investments  8,817,876  0  8,817,876  8,778,049 
 Accounts receivable  370,866  247,124  617,990  589,508 
 Prepaid expenses  15,651  15,651  31,302  0 
 
 Total Current Assets  21,311,469  859,171  22,170,640  23,890,360 
 
Noncurrent Assets 
 Accounts receivable  2,883  0  2,883  2,883 
 Capital assets, net of 
  accumulated depreciation  13,388,224  25,722,977  39,111,201  36,902,638 
 
 Total Noncurrent Assets  13,391,107  25,722,977  39,114,084  36,905,521 
 
 Total Assets  34,702,576  26,582,148  61,284,724  60,795,881 
 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
 Accounts payable  136,382  36,473  172,855  71,513 
 Deposits  18,600  7,396  25,996  25,996 
 Deferred revenues  63,267  200,000  263,267  268,133 
 Retainage payable  108,906  0  108,906  9,443 
 
 Total Current Liabilities  327,155  243,869  571,024  375,085 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
 Accrued compensated 
  absences  50,706  50,706  101,412  85,960 
 
 Total Noncurrent Assets  50,706  50,706  101,412  85,960 
 
 Total Liabilities  377,861  294,575  672,436  461,045 
 
Net Assets 
 Invested in capital assets, 
  net of related debt  13,388,224  25,722,977  39,111,201  36,902,638 
 Unrestricted  20,936,491  564,596  21,501,087  23,432,198 
 
 Total Net Assets $ 34,324,715 $ 26,287,573 $ 60,612,288 $ 60,334,836 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2011   2010  
 
Operating Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,608,065 $ 1,453,543 $ 4,061,608 $ 4,013,954 
 Charges for services 
  Lockheed Martin 
  Agreement  0  384,419  384,419  409,083 
 Permit fees  1,800  1,800  3,600  26,650 
 Outside treatment  153,548  21,978  175,526  183,645 
 Loss on sale of assets  0  0  0  (30,580) 
 Miscellaneous  113,200  35,872  149,072  139,446 
 
 Total Operating Revenues  2,876,613  1,897,612  4,774,225  4,742,198 
 
Operating Expenses  
 Personnel services  388,616  390,516  779,132  727,553 
 Operations  2,123,497  1,332,131  3,455,628  3,840,633 
 Depreciation  523,021  881,834  1,404,855  1,341,582 
 
 Total Operating Expenses  3,035,134  2,604,481  5,639,615  5,909,768 
  
 Operating Loss  (158,521)  (706,869)  (865,390)  (1,167,570) 
 
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
 Investment income  69,847  1,118  70,965  78,324 
 Availability charges  58,036  12,122  70,158  123,071 
 
 Total Non-Operating 
  Revenue (Expenses)  127,883  13,240  141,123  201,395 
 
 Net Loss Before  
  Transfers and Capital 
   contributions (30,638)  (693,629)  (724,267)  (966,175) 
 
 Transfer in  340,000  200,000  540,000  2,420,000 
 Transfer out  (58,036)  (57,704)  (115,740)  (2,073,071) 
 Capital contributions  460,302  117,157  577,459  864,589 
 
  Change in net assets  711,628  (434,176)  277,452  245,343 
 
Net assets, beginning  33,613,087  26,721,749  60,334,836  60,089,493 
 
Net assets, ending $ 34,324,715 $ 26,287,573 $ 60,612,288 $ 60,334,836 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2011   2010  
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 Cash received from customers $ 2,756,408 $ 1,905,555 $ 4,661,963 $ 4,782,703 
 Cash payments to suppliers  (2,035,513)  (1,350,075)  (3,385,588)  (3,494,573) 
 Cash payments to employees  (380,890)  (382,790)  (763,680)  (721,509) 
 Other cash received  113,200  35,872  149,072  139,446 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Operating Activities  453,205  208,562  661,767  706,067 
 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
 Transfers from other funds  340,000  200,000  540,000  346,929 
 Transfers to other funds  (58,036)  (57,704)  (115,740)  0 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Non Financing Activities  281,964  142,296  424,260  346,929 
 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
 Acquisition and construction of  
  capital assets  (1,900,703)  (1,613,252)  (3,513,955)  (2,351,110) 
 Capital charges received  460,302  117,157  577,459  864,589 
 
  Net Cash Used in Capital  
   and Related Financing Activities  (1,440,401)  (1,496,095)  (2,936,496)  (1,486,521) 
 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
 Purchases of investment  (39,827)  0  (39,827)  (26,475) 
 Investment income   69,847  1,118  70,965  78,324 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Investing Activities  30,020  1,118  31,138  51,849 
 
Net decrease  (675,212)  (1,144,119)  (1,819,331)  (381,676) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning  12,782,288  1,740,515  14,522,803  14,904,479 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending  $ 12,107,076 $ 596,396 $ 12,703,472 $ 14,522,803
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2011   2010  
 
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
 
 Operating loss $ (158,521) $ (706,869) $ (865,390) $ (1,167,570) 
 Adjustments to reconcile operating  
 loss to net cash provided by  
 operating activities: 
  Depreciation  523,021  881,834  1,404,855  1,341,582 
  Receipt of system availability charges  58,036  12,122  70,158  123,071 
  Loss on disposal of assets  0  0  0  30,580 
   Changes in assets and liabilities: 
    Accounts receivable  (60,175)  31,693  (28,482)  (41,833) 
    Prepaid expenses  (15,651)  (15,651)  (31,302)  0 
    Due from other funds  0  0  0  546,252 
    Accounts payable  85,035  16,307  101,342  (196,464) 
    Deposits  18,600  (18,600)  0  0 
    Deferred revenues  (4,866)  0  (4,866)  68,133 
    Accrued compensated absences  7,726  7,726  15,452  2,316 
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 453,205 $ 208,562 $ 661,767 $ 706,067 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (“the District”), previously the 

Roxborough Park Metropolitan District, was formed on January 12, 1972, to provide 
water, sewer and fire protection services within its boundaries. Effective July 1, 1999, 
the District’s fire protection services were merged into the West Metro Fire Protection 
District (the “WMFP”). By intergovernmental agreement, the District conveyed 
ownership of the fire station and all fire equipment to the WMFP, along with property 
tax revenues related to these services. The District is governed by a five-member Board 
of Directors elected by the residents. 

 
 The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting 

principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. Following is a summary of the more 
significant policies. 

 
 Reporting Entity 
 The financial reporting entity consists of the District and organizations for which the 

District is financially accountable. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, 
departments and offices that are not legally separate are reported as part of the District. 
In addition, any legally separate organizations for which the District is financially 
accountable are considered part of the reporting entity. Financial accountability exists if 
the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and is able 
to impose its will on the organization, or if the organization provides benefits to, or 
imposes financial burdens on the District. 

 
 Based upon the application of this criteria, the District does not report additional 

organizations within its reporting entity. 
 
 Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the District. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges for interfund services that are reasonably 
equivalent to the services provided. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

 
 The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 

given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. 
Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

 
 The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

 
 Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current year or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year. For this purpose, the District 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal year. 

 
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and interest associated with the current year 
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of 
the current year. All other revenues are considered measurable and available only when 
cash is received by the District. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 

 Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to November 
30, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict 
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the 
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance subject to this same limitation. 
The District has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

 
 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 

items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
 When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s 

practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
 
 In the fund financial statements, the District reports the following major governmental 

funds. 
 

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

(Continued) 
  
 The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources accumulated for, and payments made on, 

long-term obligations of the District. 
 
 Additionally, the District reports the following major proprietary funds. 
 
 The Water Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of water 

services. 
 
 The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of sewer 

services. 
 
 Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets/Fund Balances 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and 

cash equivalents are defined as investments with original maturities of three months or 
less. Pooled cash and investments are categorized as cash equivalents. 

 
 Investments – Investments are stated at fair value. 
 
 Receivables – All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where appropriate, 

are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. At December 
31, 2011, the District expects to collect all accounts receivable balances. 

 
 Capital Assets – Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and 

infrastructure, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the 
fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

 
 Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

following estimated useful lives. 
 
 Collection and Distribution Systems 30-50 years  
 Vehicles and Equipment 3-10 years  
 
 Deferred Revenues – Deferred revenues include property taxes earned but levied for a 

subsequent year. 
 
 Compensated Absences – Employees of the District are allowed to accumulate unused 

vacation and sick time. Upon termination of employment from the District, an 
employee will be compensated for all accrued vacation time, and for all accrued sick 
time at a rate of one day for every two days accumulated. A liability for these 
compensated absences is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds 
only when due. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued) 
 Long-Term Debt – In the government-wide financial statements, and for the proprietary 

funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Premiums and discounts, as well 
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-
line method. 

 
 In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt premiums and 

discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, during the current year. The face amount of 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 
 
Fund Balance 
The District has adopted GASB Statement Number 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides more clearly defined 
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of constraints placed on a 
government’s fund balances more transparent. Based on that statement fund balances of 
the governmental funds are classified as follows: 
 
Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
 
Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes, determined by a 
formal action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is the highest level of 
decision making body for the District. Commitments may be established, modified, or 
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Board. At December 
31, 2011, the District had no Committed Fund Balances. 
 
Assigned – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Only the Board of 
Directors may assign fund balances for specific purposes. At December 31, 2011, the 
District had no Assigned Fund Balances. 
 
The beginning fund balance has been restated to reflect the above classifications. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or unassigned fund 
balance is available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless 
the District has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 
 
Net Assets 
Net assets in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets are reported as restricted 
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling legislation or 
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulators of 
other governments. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

 Property Taxes 
 Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1 and are levied the 

following January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on 
February 28 and June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and 
remits them to the District on a monthly basis. 

 
 Comparative Information 
 Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying 

financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s 
financial position and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion 
would make the financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain prior 
year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 

 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 At December 31, 2011, cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 
 Deposits   $ 9,059,369 
 Investments    19,340,059 
  
  Total $ 28,399,428 
 

Deposits 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local 
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by 
state regulations. Amounts on deposit in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by 
the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all 
public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust 
for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must 
be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2011, the District 
had bank deposits of $1,710,259 and $7,434,072 which were covered by FDIC 
insurance and collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s agent but 
not in the District’s name. 
 
Investments 
The District is required to comply with State statutes which specify instruments meeting 
defined rating, maturity and concentration risk criteria in which local governments may 
invest. State statutes do not address custodial risk. The District’s investment policy 
follows State statutes, and allows the following investments. 
 

 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency securities 
 Certain international agency securities 
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 
 Commercial paper 
 Local government investment pools 
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
 Certain money market funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The District had the following investments at December 31, 2011: 
 
   Investment Maturities (in Years)  
    S&P   Less      Fair  
 Investment Type   Rating   Than 1   1-5   Value  
 
Local Government Investment Pool  AAAm  $ 17,036,295 $ 0 $ 17,036,295 
U.S. Agency Securities   AA+   2,303,764  0  2,303,764 
 
Interest Rate Risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to an 
original maturity of five years unless the governing board authorizes the investment for 
a period in excess of five years. 
 
Credit risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to the highest 
rating issued by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations 
(NRSROs). State statutes also limit investments in money market funds to those that 
maintain a constant share price, with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance 
with Rule 2a-7, and either have assets of one billion dollars or the highest rating issued 
by a NRSRO. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – State statues do not limit the amount the District may 
invest in one issuer. At December 31, 2011, the District’s investments in U. S. Treasury 
Notes were 5%, of the District’s total investments. 
 
Local Government Investment Pools – At December 31, 2011, the District had 
$10,522,183 and $6,514,112 invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset 
Trust (COLOTRUST), and the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) 
investment vehicles established by State statute for local government entities in 
Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and 
enforces the requirements of creating and operating COLOTRUST and CSAFE. 
COLOTRUST and CSAFE operate similarly to a money market fund and each share is 
equal in value to $1.00. COLOTRUST and CSAFE are rated AAAm by Standard and 
Poor’s. 

 
Investments of COLOTRUST and CSAFE are limited to those allowed by State 
statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services in 
connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. The custodian’s 
internal records identify the investments owned by the participating governments. 
 
At December 31, COLOTRUST and CSAFE’s portfolio had weighted average 
maturities of 11 and 45 days. 
 

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 
 
  Transfers In   Transfers Out   Amount  
 Sewer Fund   General Fund  $ 200,000 
 Water Fund   General Fund   340,000 
 Debt Service Fund   Water Fund   58,036 
 Debt Service Fund   Sewer Fund   57,704 
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Availability charges collected by the Water and Sewer Funds are required by State 
statue to be used for debt service and are transferred to the Debt Service Fund. The 
transfers from the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Funds were determined during 
the budget process. The prior year transfers from the Water to the Sewer Fund were to 
eliminate interfund loan balances. The cumulative transfers from the Water Fund to the 
Sewer Fund were $8,400,000 through December 31, 2011. It is the intent of 
management to have the Sewer Fund transfer excess funds to the Water Fund, as they 
become available, to eventually eliminate these cumulative transfers. 
 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2011, is summarized below: 
 
    Balances         Balances  
    12/31/10   Additions   Deletions   12/31/11  
Governmental Activities 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 furniture and equipment $ 97,985 $ 0 $ 0 $ 97,985 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated  97,985  0  0  97,985 
Less accumulated depreciation 
 furniture and equipment  (94,895)  (1,246)  0  (96,141) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (94,895)  (1,246)  0  (96,141) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  3,090  (1,246)  0  1,844 
Governmental Activities Capital  
 Assets $ 3,090 $ (1,246) $ 0 $ 1,844 
Business-Type Activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
 Land $ 204,511 $ 0 $ 0 $ 204,511 
 Tap fees  5,152,150  0  0  5,152,150 
 Water rights  1,139,239  0  0  1,139,239 
Total Capital Assets, Not Being  
 Depreciated  6,495,900  0  0  6,495,900 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 Land improvements  5,514  0  0  5,514 
 Collection and distributions  
  systems  44,738,498  3,613,418  0  48,351,916 
 Vehicles and equipment  361,344  0  0  361,344 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
  Depreciated  45,105,356  3,613,418  0  48,718,774 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
 Land improvements  (5,514)  0  0  (5,514) 
 Collection and distribution  
  systems  (14,374,034)  (1,381,168)  0  (15,755,202) 
 Vehicles and equipment  (319,070)  (23,687)  0  (342,757) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (14,698,618)  (1,404,855)  0  (16,103,473) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  30,406,738  2,208,563  0  32,615,301 
Business-Type Activities Capital  
 Assets, Net $ 36,902,638 $ 2,208,563 $ 0 $ 39,111,201 
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
All water rights of the District are for sale at December 31, 2011. 
 
Depreciated expense was charged to programs of the District as follows: 
 
Governmental activities 
 General Government $ 1,246 
Business-type activities 
 Water $ 523,021 
 Sewer  881,834 
  Total $ 1,404,855 
 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the governmental activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2011: 
 
     Balance         Balance  Due Within  
    12/31/10    Additions   Payments   12/31/11   One Year  
Governmental Activities 
Accrued Compensated  
 Absences $ 15,469 $ 622 $ 0 $ 16,091 $ 0 
2005 CWRPDA Loan  7,835,000  0  385,000  7,450,000  395,000 
Loan premium  347,539  0  23,133  324,406  0 
 
 Total $ 8,198,008 $ 622 $ 408,133 $ 7,790,497 $ 395,000 
 
Compensated absences are expected to be liquidated primarily with revenues of the 
General Fund. 
 
2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Colorado Water Resources and 
Power Development Authority and proceeds were loaned to the District to finance a 
sewer pipeline and two pump stations. Principal and interest payments are due semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1, through 2026. Interest accrues at the rate of 
3.35% per annum. 
 
Future payments for the outstanding debt are as follows: 
 
       Interest and      
Year Ended December 31,  Principal   Admin. Fees   Total  
2012  $ 395,000 $ 286,926 $ 681,926 
2013   410,000  274,492  684,492 
2014   425,000  261,587  686,587 
2015   435,000  248,209  683,209 
2016   450,000  234,517  684,517 
2017-2021   2,460,000  965,811  3,425,811 
2022-2026   2,875,000  618,105  3,493,105 
 
 Total  $ 7,450,000 $ 2,889,647 $ 10,339,647 
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Following are the long-term debt transactions of the business-type activities for the year 
ended December 31, 2011: 
 
    Balance        Balance   Due Within  
    12/31/10   Additions   Payments   12/31/11   One Year  
 Business-Type Activities 
 Accrued compensated  
  absences $ 85,960 $ 15,452 $ 0 $ 101,412 $ 0 
 

NOTE 6 - PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
For these risks of loss, with the exception of workers’ compensation, the District carries 
commercial insurance. For workers’ compensation, the District participates in the 
Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool, a separate and independent 
governmental and legal entity formed by intergovernmental agreement. 
 
The purposes of the Pool are to provide members defined liability, property, and 
workers compensation coverages and to assist members in preventing and reducing 
losses and injuries to property and to persons or property which might result in claims 
being made against members of the Pool, their employees and officers. 
 
It is the intent of the members of the Pool to create an entity in perpetuity which will 
administer and use funds contributed by the members to defend and indemnify, in 
accordance with the bylaws, any member of the Pool against stated liability of loss, to 
the limit of the financial resources of the Pool. It is also the intent of the members to 
have the Pool provide continuing stability and availability of needed coverages at 
reasonable costs. All income and assets of the Pool shall be at all times dedicated to the 
exclusive benefit of its members. The Pool is a separate legal entity and the District 
does not approve budgets nor does it have the ability to significantly affect the 
operations of the Pool. 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS 
 

Profit Sharing Plan 
 
The District has established a profit sharing pension plan on behalf of all District 
employees. The contribution requirements of plan participants and the District are 
established and may be amended by the Board of Directors. All employees are eligible 
to participate in the plan upon employment, and become fully vested after five years of 
service. 
 
The District may contribute up to 15% of each participating employee’s compensation. 
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the District contributed $95,627 to the Plan, 
representing 15% of employee compensation. All contributions are deposited to the 
individual employee’s self-directed accounts and the District has no further fiduciary 
responsibility for the plan assets. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all District employees 
and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All plan 
investments are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the employees. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable emergency. 

 
NOTE 8 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 
At December 31, 2011, the governmental activities had negative net assets of $949,263, 
which resulted because debt proceeds were used to construct capital assets that were 
contributed to the Water and Sewer Funds. Property tax revenues will be used to service 
the debt, which will reduce the negative net assets in the future. 

 
NOTE 9 - CONCENTRATIONS 

 
One company paid 18% of all revenue for the year ended December 31, 2011. This 
same company was responsible for 21% of the property tax collected. 
 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Tabor Amendment 
 
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20 
(the “Amendment”) which has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending 
abilities, and other specific requirements of state and local government. The 
Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The District believes it is 
in compliance with the requirements of the Amendment. 
 
In November, 2001, the District electors allowed the District to spend the full proceeds 
of any taxes, fees, charges, grants, rates, tolls or any other revenues collected in fiscal 
year 2000 and in all subsequent fiscal years without regard to any limitation contained 
in the Amendment. 
 
The District has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying 
expenditures, as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2011, the emergency 
reserve of $45,500 was reported as a restriction of fund balance in the General Fund.
 
The District has entered into a contract to purchase sewer treatment services from the 
City of Littleton, Colorado. This City is treating all wastewater of the District. The 
contract is irrevocable by the District as long as bonds to finance the City’s treatment 
plant are still outstanding. 
 
The District has entered into an agreement to purchase is water from the City of Aurora, 
Colorado. This agreement expires in 2105 and then automatically and continuously 
renews for another ninety years. As part of the agreement with the City of Aurora, the 
District will pay the City development and connection fee of $6,575 per customer. This 
fee is due in December 2015, although the District may purchase taps before that date. 
The District estimates that this fee will be $24,985,000. 
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
In November 2011, the District electors approved an increase in District debt of 
$6,500,000. These funds will be used to purchase certain development and connection 
fees from the City of Aurora. 
 
The District has agreed to sell its waste water treatment plant to another water and 
sanitation district. This total sale price is $4,000,000 plus $300 for every tap sold by the 
buyer. The District anticipates a total minimum price of $7,000,000. The District has 
received, and included in deferred income, the amount of $200,000 at December 31, 
2011. 
 
The District has entered into construction contracts for various projects. At December 
31, 2011, the remaining contractual amounts are $109,920. 
 
During the 1970’s the District presold approximately 2,500 taps. For the year ended 
December 31, 2011 each prepaid tap had a credit value of $14,757 against the total tap 
cost of approximately $37,125. At December 31, 2011, 87 presold taps remained.
 

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
During 2012, the District entered into a line of credit with a bank totaling $4,000,000. 
 



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
     Original      Variance  
     And Final      Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 842,157 $ 825,170 $ (16,987) 
 Specific ownership taxes    50,000  68,485  18,485 
 Investment income    2,000  2,652  652 
 Miscellaneous revenues    500  0  (500) 
 
  Total Revenues    894,657  896,307  1,650 
 
Expenditures 
 Salaries and benefits    115,000  108,419  6,581 
 Accounting and audit    18,000  18,887  (887) 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Director fees    8,000  7,100  900 
 Election expense    20,000  27,669  (7,669) 
 Education    30,000  16,257  13,743 
 Engineering    15,000  14,878  122 
 Insurance    11,000  10,330  670 
 Legal fees    20,000  13,253  6,747 
 Miscellaneous    5,000  2,780  2,220 
 Office expense    20,000  16,375  3,625 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions   1,500  2,475  (975) 
 Rent     15,000  0  15,000 
 Repairs and maintenance    15,000  16,864  (1,864) 
 Treasurer fees    15,000  11,703  3,297 
 Utilities    6,800  6,892  (92) 
 Vehicle expense    3,000  2,379  621 
 Capital outlay    10,000  0  10,000 
 
  Total Expenditures    329,300  276,261  53,039 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  565,357  620,046  54,689 
 
Other Financing Uses 
 Transfers out    (605,860)  (540,000)  65,860 
 
  Net Change in Fund Balances  $ (40,503)  80,046 $ 120,549 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      464,983  
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 545,029  



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 
 
 
NOTE 1 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 Budgets 
 
 Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the District. Budgets for the General and 

Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgetary comparisons for the proprietary funds are 
presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis. Capital outlay and debt principal are 
budgeted as expenditures, and depreciation is not budgeted. 

 
 The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 

financial statements. 
 

 In September, District management submits to the Board of Directors a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

 
 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
 Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 

resolution. 
 

 District management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between 
departments within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total 
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
 All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado governments may not exceed 

budgeted appropriations at the fund level. 
 
 
 



 

 

INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
  Original      Variance  
  And Final      Positive  
  Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 1,153,082 $ 1,129,823 $ (23,259) 
 Specific ownership taxes  65,000  97,502  32,502 
 Investment income  10,000  10,077  77 
 
  Total Revenues  1,228,082  1,237,402  9,320 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  16,927  16,024  903 
 Debt Service 
  Principal  385,000  385,000  0 
  Interest  299,044  299,044  0 
 
 Total Expenditures  700,971  700,068  903 
 
 Excess of Revenues Over  
  Expenditures  527,111  537,334  10,223 
 
Other Financing Sources 
 Transfers in  118,000  115,740  (2,260) 
 
  Net Change in Fund  
 Balances  645,111  653,074  7,963 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning  4,697,003  5,698,348  1,001,345 
 
Fund Balances, Ending $ 5,342,114 $ 6,351,422 $ 1,009,308 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

WATER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,600,000 $ 2,608,065 $ 8,065 
 Permit fees    8,250  1,800  (6,450) 
 Other water sales    140,000  153,548  13,548 
 Miscellaneous    79,000  113,200  34,200 
 Investment income    75,000  69,847  (5,153) 
 Availability charges    60,000  58,036  (1,964) 
 Capital charges    290,000  418,718  128,718 
 System development charges   196,000  41,584  (154,416) 
 Transfers in    0  340,000  340,000 
 
  Total Revenues    3,448,250  3,804,798  356,548 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    25,000  27,595  (2,595) 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    15,000  13,151  1,849 
 Contract labor    10,000  6,300  3,700 
 Education    25,000  20,599  4,401 
 Engineering    125,000  167,522  (42,522) 
 GPS/GIS    1,000  467  533 
 Insurance    22,000  20,420  1,580 
 Lab and test fees    18,000  12,820  5,180 
 Legal fees    50,000  30,857  19,143 
 Meter expense    150,000  138,606  11,394 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  5,774  6,226 
 Office expense    30,000  32,718  (2,718) 
 Operating supplies    105,000  85,498  18,502 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    410,000  388,616  21,384 
 Repairs and maintenance    275,000  156,276  118,724 
 Utilities    110,000  103,046  6,954 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  14,612  388 
 Water study    50,000  23,283  26,717 
 Dominion    0  2,211  0 
 Water cost    1,500,000  1,202,191  297,809 
 Capital outlay    4,000,000  2,000,166  1,999,834 
 Conservation rebates    15,000  9,376  5,624 
 Chatfield reallocation    25,000  24,988  12 
 Water rights capital    15,000  25,187  (10,187) 
 Transfers out    2,520,600  58,036  2,462,564 
 
  Total Expenditures    9,523,600  4,570,315  4,955,496 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ (6,075,350)  (765,517) $ 5,312,044 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

WATER FUND (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay     $ 2,000,166   
 Depreciation      (523,021)   
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     711,628   
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      33,613,087   
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 34,324,715   
 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SEWER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 1,420,000 $ 1,453,543 $ 33,543 
 Charges for services – Lockheed 
  Martin Agreement  420,000  384,419  (35,581) 
 Permit fees    8,250  1,800  (6,450) 
 Ravenna service charge    13,000  21,978  8,978 
 Miscellaneous    42,000  35,872  (6,128) 
 Investment income    1,500  1,118  (382) 
 Availability charges    58,000  12,122  (45,878) 
 Capital charges    63,000  94,467  31,467 
 System development charges   63,650  22,690  (40,960) 
 Transfer in    1,975,040  200,000  (1,775,040) 
 
  Total Revenues    4,064,440  2,228,009  (1,836,431) 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    20,000  18,664  1,336 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Dominion expense    1,000  0  1,000 
 Education    6,000  17,103  (11,103) 
 Engineering    75,000  81,186  (6,186) 
 GPS/GIS    1,000  467  533 
 Insurance    22,000  20,420  1,580 
 Lab and test fees    300  200  100 
 Legal fees    30,000  16,703  13,297 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  3,968  8,032 
 Office expense    30,000  31,935  (1,935) 
 Operating supplies    50,000  32,125  17,875 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    1,500  1,455  45 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    410,000  390,516  19,484 
 Repairs and maintenance    250,000  231,571  18,429 
 Service fees    800,000  753,142  46,858 
 Utilities    110,000  108,628  1,372 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  14,564  436 
 Capital outlay    2,200,000  1,613,252  586,748 
 Transfer out    0  57,704  (57,704) 
 
  Total Expenditures    4,034,800  3,393,603  641,197 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ 29,640  (1,165,594) $ (1,195,234) 
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay      1,613,252   
 Depreciation      (881,834)   
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     (434,176)   
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      26,721,749   
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 26,287,573   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
Littleton, Colorado 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities and each major fund of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2012, which collectively comprise the Roxborough Water and 
Sanitation District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each 
major fund of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, as of December 31, 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As described in Note 11 to the financial statements, the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
adopted the provisions of GASB Statement Numbers 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position and 65, Items Previously Reported as 
Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
Other-Matters 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages iii through 
ix and 21 and 22 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s financial statements as a whole. The individual major fund 
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
financial statements. The individual major fund schedules are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
 
 
April 17, 2013 
Denver, Colorado 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 
As management of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District (the District), we offer readers 
of the District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the District for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Assets exceeded liabilities by $60,963,540 at the close of the fiscal year. Of this amount, 
$30,119,679 is unrestricted and available to meet ongoing and future obligations of the 
District. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $23,879,324. 

• Total net position increased by $1,363,006. 
• Total cash and investments increased by $1,912,969 as compared to the prior year. 
• General fund expenditures decreased by $28,219 as compared to the prior year. 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was     

$ 374,168 or 150.85% of total general fund expenditures. 
• Total debt decreased by $395,000 or 5.3% during the current fiscal year. The reason for 

this decrease was the scheduled payment of principal on long-term debt.  
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources, with the remainder reported as net position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the District is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods.  
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are 
principally to be supported by ad valorem taxes (governmental activities) from other functions 
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include the 
financing, construction of, and maintenance of public infrastructure improvements constructed or 
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acquired by the District. The business-type activities of the District include water and sewer 
facilities construction, maintenance and operations. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1-2 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be 
divided into two categories – Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. The governmental funds 
use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  During the year ended December 31, 2012, the 
District implemented GASB Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position and GASB Statement 65 Items 
Previously Reported As Assets And Liabilities. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for each of the funds - general fund, capital projects 
fund, and debt service fund - all of which are considered to be major funds. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3-5 of this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer 
operations. These services are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the water and sewer operations, which are considered to be major funds of the 
District. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 6-9 of this report. 
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Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to financial statements can be found on pages 10-20 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information. The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for 
its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement for this fund has been provided as required 
supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The general fund budget 
statements and notes are found on pages 21-22 of this report. 
 
Other information. The report includes individual fund schedules. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided in this section for the capital projects fund, the debt service fund, 
the water fund and the sewer fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. The budget 
statements are found on pages 23-27 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. The District’s net position was $60,963,540 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. Of this amount $30,119,679 is unrestricted and is available to meet the District’s 
ongoing financial obligations. 
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Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

25,573,977$ 7,068,654$   32,642,631$ 8,576,212$   22,173,523$ 30,749,735$ 
-                2,883            2,883            62,491          -                62,491          

1,106            37,938,611   37,939,717   1,844            39,111,201   39,113,045   
Total Assets 25,575,083   45,010,148   70,585,231   8,640,547     61,284,724   69,925,271   

524,372        325,724        850,096        2,194,313     571,024        2,765,337     
6,963,678     113,264        7,076,942     7,395,497     101,412        7,496,909     

Total Liabilit ies 7,488,050     438,988        7,927,038     9,589,810     672,436        10,262,246   

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable Revenue 1,694,653     -                1,694,653     -                -                -                

Net Investment in Capital Assets (7,356,167)    37,938,611   30,582,444   (8,208,493)    39,111,201   30,902,708   
261,417        -                261,417        6,396,922     -                6,396,922     

23,487,130   6,632,549     30,119,679   862,308        21,501,087   22,363,395   
Total Net Position 16,392,380$ 44,571,160$ 60,963,540$ (949,263)$     60,612,288$ 59,663,025$ 

Statements of Net Position

2012 2011

Current Assets
Other Assets

Unrestricted Net Position

Capital Assets, net

Current Liabilit ies
Long-Term Obligations

Restricted Net Position

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

-$              4,981,530$   4,981,530$   -$              4,774,225$   4,774,225$   

Contributions -                131,568        131,568        -                70,158          70,158          

Contributions -                712,109        712,109        -                577,459        577,459        

1,677,286     -                1,677,286     1,954,993     -                1,954,993     

Taxes 136,267        -                136,267        165,987        -                165,987        
22,183          36,656          58,839          12,729          70,965          83,694          

-                -                -                -                -                -                
Total Revenue 1,835,736     5,861,863     7,697,599     2,133,709     5,492,807     7,626,516     

264,557        -                264,557        298,616        -                298,616        

Debt 258,613        -                258,613        270,861        -                270,861        
-                5,811,423     5,811,423     -                5,639,615     5,639,615     

Total Expenses 523,170        5,811,423     6,334,593     569,477        5,639,615     6,209,092     

1,312,566     50,440          1,363,006     1,564,232     (146,808)       1,417,424     

16,091,568   (16,091,568)  -                (424,260)       424,260        -                

17,404,134   (16,041,128)  1,363,006     1,139,972     277,452        1,417,424     

(1,011,754)    60,612,288   59,600,534   (2,089,235)    60,334,836   58,245,601   
16,392,380$ 44,571,160$ 60,963,540   (949,263)$     60,612,288$ 59,663,025$ 

Statements of Activities

2012 2011

Program Revenue

Operating Grants and 
Charges for Services

Interest on Long-Term
General Government

Expenses

Revenue

Excess

General Revenue

Capital Grants and 

Other
Investment Income

Specific Ownership
Property Taxes

Net Position - Ending
Net Position - Beginning - Restated

Change in Net Position

Transfers

Water/Sewer Facilit ies
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the District’s net position by 
$17,404,134, several highlights are as follows: 
 

• Property taxes decreased $277,707 (14.21%) over the prior year.  
• Specific ownership taxes decreased $29,720. 
• General Government expenses decreased by $29,780 this year. 
• The Water Fund transferred $16,500,000 to the Capital Projects Fund for the construction 

of a new water treatment plant. 
 
Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the District’s net position by 
$16,041,128, mainly due to the transfer of $16,500,000 from the Water Fund to the Capital 
Projects Fund. Some of the key elements of the change in net position are as follows: 
 

• Service charges increased $149,548 (3.36%) over prior year.  
• Investment income decreased $34,309 due to decreasing interest rates, and the transfer to 

the Capital Projects Fund. 
• Total operating expenses are increased $171,808 as a result of an increase in depreciation 

$85,223, and an increase in operations expenses $69,484, and an increase in personnel 
expenses of $17,101. 

 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful 
in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of 
the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $23,879,324, of which $374,168 constitutes unassigned fund balance, 
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion within the parameters established 
for each fund. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $374,168 out of a total fund balance of 
$616,205. In compliance with an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, the 
district has established an emergency reserve representing 3% of qualifying expenditures. At 
December 31, 2012, the emergency reserve was $7,441. 
 
The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $253,976, all of which is restricted for the 
repayment of long-term indebtedness. The long term loans payable as of December 31, 2012 is   
$ 7,055,000. 
 
The capital projects fund has a total fund balance of $23,009,143 which will be used to build a 
water treatment plant. 



viii 
 

On November 1, 2011 the district voted in favor of Ballot Issue 5A.  This positive vote 
authorized the district debt to be increased by a total of $ 6,500,000 for the purpose of being the 
repayment of loans advanced from the district’s water fund to the district’s sewer fund to finance 
a portion of the costs of improvements to the district’s sanitary sewer collection and transmission 
system.  This debt was repaid from the district’s current property tax fund balance established by 
the district pursuant to voter authorization obtained at the November 2002 election and without 
future increases in the annual taxes authorized by the November 2002 election. 
 
Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary fund at the end of the year amounted to $6,632,549. 
The total net position of the District’s proprietary funds as of December 31, 2012 are 
$44,571,160. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in 
the discussion of the District’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The District’s total expenditures for 2012 did not exceed the final budgeted appropriation. The 
difference between the original and final budgeted revenue of $838,567 and the actual revenue of 
$859,218 was $20,651. The difference between the original budgeted expenditures of $328,000 
and the actual expenditures of $248,042 was $79,958. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The District has invested $37,939,717 in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its 
governmental and business-type activities as of the year ended December 31, 2012. This 
investment in capital assets includes water and sewer facilities, water rights and vehicles and 
equipment. This includes $317,488 of upgrades and improvements to the districts collection and 
distribution systems in 2012. 
 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in note 4 beginning on page 
16 of this report. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total outstanding long-term debt of 
$7,373,678.  Accrued compensated absences accounts for $17,405 of this amount. The remaining 
$7,356,273 is related to the District’s 2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds through the Colorado 
Water Resources and Power Development Authority (2005 CWRPDA) which are due annually 
through 2026 and pay interest rates of 3.35% semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.  
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in note 5 beginning on page 
17 of this report. 
  
Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
Government funds. The 2013 budget reflects a slight increase in property tax revenue.  The 
total assessed value for 2013 is $ 127,743,991 up from $126,621,650 in 2012. The total mill levy 
in 2013 is 13.2658 mills. General fund expenditures are expected to increase due to natural 
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growth of the District. The district did include a Capital Projects fund budget for 2013 of 
$23,000,000. 
 
Proprietary funds. Water and sewer sales are expected to increase slightly over 2012 as a result 
of some growth and potential rate increase. Expenditures are expected to increase slightly also. 
The District is anticipating an additional rate increase from the City of Aurora, which is the 
District’s water source, and also from the City of Littleton, which is the District’s wastewater 
treatment provider. 
 
Capital Projects. There were no major capital projects completed during the year. The district 
did capitalize $ 317,488 in upgrades and improvements to their collection and distribution 
systems during the year. These items will be depreciated over their normal useful lives. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Roxborough Water & 
Sanitation District’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to: Roxborough Water & Sanitation District, 6222 N. 
Roxborough Park Road, Littleton, CO 80125. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
 
  Govern-  Business-  
   mental   Type  Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2012   2011  
 
Assets 
Cash and investments $ 23,869,787 $ 6,442,610 $ 30,312,397 $ 28,399,428 
Accounts receivable  9,537  628,927  638,464  631,419 
Property taxes receivable  1,694,653  0  1,694,653  1,679,761 
Prepaid expenses  0  0  0  39,127 
Debt issuance costs, net of  
 accumulated amortization  0  0  0  62,491 
Capital assets, net of 
 accumulated depreciation  1,106  37,938,611  37,939,717  39,113,045 
 
 Total Assets  25,575,083  45,010,148  70,585,231  69,925,271 
 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable  0  41,328  41,328  172,855 
Deposits   0  25,996  25,996  25,996 
Deferred revenue  0  258,400  258,400  263,267 
Accrued interest payable  114,372  0  114,372  119,552 
Retainage payable  0  0  0  108,906 
Non current liabilities 
 Due within one year  410,000  0  410,000  395,000 
 Due in more than one year   6,963,678  113,264  7,076,942  7,496,909 
 
 Total Liabilities  7,488,050  438,988  7,927,038  8,582,485 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenue-property  
 taxes   1,694,653  0  1,694,653  1,679,761 
 
Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets  (7,356,167)  37,938,611  30,582,444  30,902,708 
Restricted for debt service  253,976  0  253,976  6,351,422 
Restricted for emergencies  7,441  0  7,441  45,500 
Unrestricted  23,487,130  6,632,549  30,119,679  22,363,395 
 
 Total Net Position $ 16,392,380 $ 44,571,160  $ 60,963,540 $ 59,663,025 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
 
  Program Revenues  
     Charges   Operating   Capital  
     for   Grants and   Grants and  
  Expenses   Services  Contributions Contributions 
 
Function/Programs 
Governmental Activities 
 General government $ 264,557 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
 Interest on long-term debt  258,613  0  0  0 
 
Total Governmental Activities  523,170  0  0  0 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 Water   3,225,140  3,116,488  72,202  566,342 
 Sewer   2,586,283  1,865,042  59,366  145,767 
 
  Total Business-Type  
   Activities  5,811,423  4,981,530  131,568  712,109 
 
Total Primary Government $ 6,334,593 $ 4,981,530 $ 131,568 $ 712,109 
 

General Revenues 
 Property taxes 
 Specific ownership taxes 
 Investment income 
Transfers 
 
 Total General Revenues and 
  Transfers 
 
 Change in net position 
 
Net Position, Beginning (Restated) 
 
Net Position, Ending 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
  Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position  
  Primary Government  
  Govern-   Business-        
  mental   Type   Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2012   2011  
 
 
 
 
 $ (264,557) $ 0 $ (264,557) $ (298,616) 
  (258,613)  0  (258,613)  (270,861) 
 
  (523,170)  0  (523,170)  (569,477) 
 
 
  0  529,892  529,892  359,817 
  0  (516,108)  (516,108)  (577,590) 
 
 
  0  13,784  13,784  (217,773) 
 
  (523,170)  13,784  (509,386)  (787,250) 
 
 
  1,677,286  0  1,677,286  1,954,993 
  136,267  0  136,267  165,987 
  22,183  36,656  58,839  83,694 
  16,091,568  (16,091,568)  0  0 
 
 
  17,927,304  (16,054,912)  1,872,392  2,204,674 
 
  17,404,134  (16,041,128)  1,363,006  1,417,424 
 
  (1,011,754)  60,612,288  59,600,534  58,245,601 
 
 $ 16,392,380 $ 44,571,160 $ 60,963,540 $ 59,663,025 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEETS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
 
         Total Governmental  
    Capital   Debt   Funds  
  General   Projects   Service   2012   2011  
 
Assets 
 Cash and investments $ 611,742 $ 23,009,143 $ 248,902 $ 23,869,787 $ 6,878,080 
 Accounts receivable  4,463  0  5,074  9,537  10,546 
 Property taxes receivable  793,035  0  901,618  1,694,653  1,679,761 
 Prepaid items  0  0  0  0  7,825 
 
   Total Assets $ 1,409,240 $ 23,009,143 $ 1,155,594 $ 25,573,977 $ 8,576,212 
 
Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 Unavailable revenue- 
  property taxes  793,035  0  901,618  1,694,653  1,679,761 
 
Fund Balances 
 Nonspendable 
  Prepaids  0  0  0  0  7,825 
 Restricted for: 
  Emergencies  7,441  0  0  7,441  45,500 
  Debt service    0  253,976  253,976  6,351,422 
 Committed to: 
  Construction of water 
   treatment plant  0  23,009,143  0  23,009,143  0 
 Assigned to: 
  Subsequent year’s budget: 
   Appropriation of fund balance 234,596  0  0  234,596  0 
 Unassigned  374,168  0  0  374,168  491,704 
 
   Total Fund Balances  616,205  23,009,143  253,976  23,879,324  6,896,451 
 
  Total Liabilities, Deferred 
   Inflows of Resources 
   and Fund Balances $ 1,409,240 $ 23,009,143 $ 1,155,594 $ 25,573,977 $ 8,576,212 
              (Continued) 



 

 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEETS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
 
Total fund balances of governmental funds    $ 23,879,324 $ 6,896,451 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the 
funds. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation of 
$96,879.    1,106  1,844 

 
Long-term liabilities, including related items, including 
loans payable ($7,055,000), loan premium ($301,273), 
accrued compensated absences ($17,405), and accrued 
interest payable ($114,372) are not due and payable in 
the current year and, therefore, are not reported in the 
funds.    (7,488,050)  (7,847,558) 

 
Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities    $ 16,392,380 $ (949,263) 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
 
         Total Governmental  
    Capital   Debt   Funds  
  General   Projects   Service   2012   2011  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 795,329 $ 0 $ 881,957  1,677,286 $ 1,954,993 
 Specific ownership taxes  60,450  0  75,817  136,267  165,987 
 Investment income  3,439  9,143  9,601  22,183  12,729 
 
  Total Revenues  859,218  9,143  967,375  1,835,736  2,133,709 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  248,042  0  14,463  262,505  292,285 
 Debt service 
  Principal  0  0  395,000  395,000  385,000 
  Interest and fiscal charges 0  0  286,926  286,926  299,044 
 
  Total Expenditures  248,042  0  696,389  944,431  976,329 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over 
   Expenditures  611,176  9,143  270,986  891,305  1,157,380 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  0  23,000,000  131,568  23,131,568  115,740 
 Transfers out  (540,000)  0  (6,500,000)  (7,040,000)  (540,000) 
 
  Total Other Financing 
   Sources (Uses)  (540,000)  23,000,000  (6,368,432)  16,091,568  (424,260) 
 
  Net change in fund 
   balances  71,176  23,009,143  (6,097,446)  16,982,873  733,120 
 
Fund balances, beginning  545,029  0  6,351,422  6,896,451  6,163,331 
 
Fund balances, ending $ 616,205 $ 23,009,143 $ 253,976 $ 23,879,324 $ 6,896,451 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statements of activities are different because: 
 
    2012   2011  

Net change in fund balances, total governmental 
funds  $ 16,982,873 $ 733,120 

 
Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets 
are reported in governmental funds as 
expenditures. However, for governmental activities 
those costs are shown in the statement of net 
position and allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as annual depreciation expense in the 
statement of activities. This amount represents 
depreciation expense in the current year.  (738)  (1,246) 
 
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources 
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net 
position. This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and 
related items: amortization of loan premium 
$23,133, and change in accrued interest payable 
$5,180.  28,313  23,720 
 
Loan payments $395,000 and changes in 
compensated absences ($1,314) are expenditures in 
the governmental funds, but they change long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net position and do 
not affect the statement of activities.  393,686  384,378 

 
 Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 17,404,134  $ 1,139,972 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2012   2011  
 
Assets 
Current Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,414,432 $ 1,028,178 $ 6,442,610 $ 12,703,472 
 Investments  0  0  0  8,817,876 
 Accounts receivable  357,708  268,336  626,044  617,990 
 Prepaid expenses  0  0  0  31,302 
 
 Total Current Assets  5,772,140  1,296,514  7,068,654  22,170,640 
 
Noncurrent Assets 
 Accounts receivable  2,883  0  2,883  2,883 
 Capital assets, net of 
  accumulated depreciation  13,046,660  24,891,951  37,938,611  39,111,201 
 
 Total Noncurrent Assets  13,049,543  24,891,951  37,941,494  39,114,084 
 
 Total Assets  18,821,683  26,188,465  45,010,148  61,284,724 
 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
 Accounts payable  33,043  8,285  41,328  172,855 
 Deposits  18,600  7,396  25,996  25,996 
 Deferred revenues  58,400  200,000  258,400  263,267 
 Retainage payable  0  0  0  108,906 
 
 Total Current Liabilities  110,043  215,681  325,724  571,024 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
 Accrued compensated 
  absences  56,632  56,632  113,264  101,412 
 
 Total Noncurrent Liabilities  56,632  56,632  113,264  101,412 
 
 Total Liabilities  166,675  272,313  438,988  672,436 
 
Net Position 
 Net investment in capital 
  assets  13,046,660  24,891,951  37,938,611  39,111,201 
 Unrestricted  5,608,348  1,024,201  6,632,549  21,501,087 
 
 Total Net Position $ 18,655,008 $ 25,916,152 $ 44,571,160 $ 60,612,288 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2012   2011  
 
Operating Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,801,685 $ 1,451,880 $ 4,253,565 $ 4,061,608 
 Charges for services 
  Lockheed Martin 
  Agreement  0  342,010  342,010  384,419 
 Permit fees  4,375  8,095  12,470  3,600 
 Outside treatment  212,060  22,032  234,092  175,526 
 Miscellaneous  98,368  41,025  139,393  149,072 
 
 Total Operating Revenues  3,116,488  1,865,042  4,981,530  4,774,225 
 
Operating Expenses  
 Personnel services  407,916  388,317  796,233  779,132 
 Operations  2,247,435  1,277,677  3,525,112  3,455,628 
 Depreciation  569,789  920,289  1,490,078  1,404,855 
 
 Total Operating Expenses  3,225,140  2,586,283  5,811,423  5,639,615 
  
 Operating Loss  (108,652)  (721,241)  (829,893)  (865,390) 
 
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
 Investment income  32,603  4,053  36,656  70,965 
 Availability charges  72,202  59,366  131,568  70,158 
 
 Total Non-Operating 
  Revenue (Expenses)  104,805  63,419  168,224  141,123 
 
 Net Loss Before  
  Transfers and Capital 
   contributions (3,847)  (657,822)  (661,669)  (724,267) 
 
 Transfer in  340,000  200,000  540,000  540,000 
 Transfer out  (16,572,202)  (59,366)  (16,631,568)  (115,740) 
 Capital contributions  566,342  145,767  712,109  577,459 
 
  Change in net position  (15,669,707)  (371,421)  (16,041,128)  277,452 
 
Net position, beginning  34,324,715  26,287,573  60,612,288  60,334,836 
 
Net position, ending $ 18,655,008 $ 25,916,152 $ 44,571,160 $ 60,612,288 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2012   2011  
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 Cash received from customers $ 3,098,613 $ 1,862,171 $ 4,960,784 $ 4,661,963 
 Cash payments to suppliers  (2,335,123)  (1,290,214)  (3,625,337)  (3,385,588) 
 Cash payments to employees  (401,990)  (382,391)  (784,381)  (763,680) 
 Other cash received  98,368  41,025  139,393  149,072 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Operating Activities  459,868  230,591  690,459  661,767 
 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
 Transfers from other funds  340,000  200,000  540,000  540,000 
 Transfers to other funds  (16,572,202)  (59,366)  (16,631,568)  (115,740) 
 
  Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
   Non Financing Activities  (16,232,202)  140,634  (16,091,568)  424,260 
 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
 Acquisition and construction of  
  capital assets  (337,131)  (89,263)  (426,394)  (3,513,955) 
 Capital charges received  566,342  145,767  712,109  577,459 
 
  Net Cash Provided By (Used in)  
   Capital and Related Financing 
   Activities  229,211  56,504  285,715 (2,936,496) 
 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
 Purchases of investment  8,817,876  0  8,817,876  (39,827) 
 Investment income   32,603  4,053  36,656  70,965 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Investing Activities  8,850,479  4,053  8,854,532  31,138 
 
Net increase (decrease)  (6,692,644)  431,782  (6,260,862)  (1,819,331) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning  12,107,076  596,396  12,703,472  14,522,803 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending  $ 5,414,432 $ 1,028,178 $ 6,442,610 $ 12,703,472



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2012   2011  
 
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
 
 Operating loss $ (108,652) $ (721,241) $ (829,893) $ (865,390) 
 Adjustments to reconcile operating  
 loss to net cash provided by  
 operating activities: 
  Depreciation  569,789  920,289  1,490,078  1,404,855 
  Receipt of system availability charges  72,202  59,366  131,568  70,158 
  Changes in assets and liabilities: 
    Accounts receivable  13,158  (21,212)  (8,054)  (28,482) 
    Prepaid expenses  15,651  15,651  31,302  (31,302) 
    Accounts payable  (103,339)  (28,188)  (131,527)  101,342 
    Deferred revenues  (4,867)  0  (4,867)  (4,866) 
    Accrued compensated absences  5,926  5,926  11,852  15,452 
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 459,868 $ 230,591 $ 690,459 $ 661,767 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (“the District”), previously the 

Roxborough Park Metropolitan District, was formed on January 12, 1972, to provide 
water, sewer and fire protection services within its boundaries. Effective July 1, 1999, 
the District’s fire protection services were merged into the West Metro Fire Protection 
District (the “WMFP”). By intergovernmental agreement, the District conveyed 
ownership of the fire station and all fire equipment to the WMFP, along with property 
tax revenues related to these services. The District is governed by a five-member Board 
of Directors elected by the residents. 

 
 The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting 

principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. Following is a summary of the more 
significant policies. 

 
 Reporting Entity 
 The financial reporting entity consists of the District and organizations for which the 

District is financially accountable. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, 
departments and offices that are not legally separate are reported as part of the District. 
In addition, any legally separate organizations for which the District is financially 
accountable are considered part of the reporting entity. Financial accountability exists if 
the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and is able 
to impose its will on the organization, or if the organization provides benefits to, or 
imposes financial burdens on the District. 

 
 Based upon the application of this criteria, the District does not report additional 

organizations within its reporting entity. 
 
 Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the District. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges for interfund services that are reasonably 
equivalent to the services provided. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

 
 The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 

given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. 
Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

 
 The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

 
 Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current year or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year. For this purpose, the District 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal year. 

 
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and interest associated with the current year 
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of 
the current year. All other revenues are considered measurable and available only when 
cash is received by the District. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 

 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
 When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s 

practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
 
 In the fund financial statements, the District reports the following major governmental 

funds. 
 

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of the 
government’s major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
 

 
 
 
 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 

12 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

(Continued) 
  
 The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources accumulated for, and payments made on, 

long-term obligations of the District. 
 
 Additionally, the District reports the following major proprietary funds. 
 
 The Water Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of water 

services. 
 
 The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of sewer 

services. 
 
 Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets/Fund Balances 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and 

cash equivalents are defined as investments with original maturities of three months or 
less. Pooled cash and investments are categorized as cash equivalents. 

 
 Investments – Investments are stated at fair value. 
 
 Receivables – All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where appropriate, 

are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. At December 
31, 2012, the District expects to collect all accounts receivable balances. 

 
 Capital Assets – Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and 

infrastructure, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the 
fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

 
 Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

following estimated useful lives. 
 
 Collection and Distribution Systems 30-50 years  
 Vehicles and Equipment 3-10 years  
 
 Deferred Revenues – Deferred revenues include lease proceeds which have not been 

earned, and as more fully described in Note 9, amounts received from the sale of its 
waste water treatment plant. 

 
 Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – In addition to assets, the statement of 

financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Accordingly, the 
item, unavailable revenue, is reported for property taxes levied in the current year but 
collected for use in the next fiscal period. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
 Compensated Absences – Employees of the District are allowed to accumulate unused 

vacation and sick time. Upon termination of employment from the District, an employee 
will be compensated for all accrued vacation time, and for all accrued sick time at a rate 
of one day for every two days accumulated. A liability for these compensated absences 
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only when due. 

 
 Long-Term Debt – In the government-wide financial statements, and for the proprietary 

funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method. 

 
 In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt premiums and 

discounts during the current year. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. 
 
Fund Balance 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five 
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund 
balance can be spent. 
 
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
 
Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. At 
December 31, 2012, the District had no nonspendable fund balances. 
 
Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
 
Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes, determined by a 
formal action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is the highest level of 
decision making body for the District. Commitments may be established, modified, or 
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Board. 
 
Assigned – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Only the Board of 
Directors may assign fund balances for specific purposes. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or unassigned fund 
balance is available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless 
the District has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued) 

 
Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide Statement of Net Position is reported as restricted 
when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling legislation or 
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulators of 
other governments. 
 

 Property Taxes 
 Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1 and are levied the 

following January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on 
February 28 and June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and 
remits them to the District on a monthly basis. 

 
 Comparative Information 
 Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying 

financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s 
financial position and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion 
would make the financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain prior 
year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 

 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 At December 31, 2012, cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 
 Deposits   $ 9,834,075 
 Investments    20,478,322 
  
  Total $ 30,312,397 
 

Deposits 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local 
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by 
state regulations. Amounts on deposit in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by 
the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all 
public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust for 
all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be 
at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2012, the District had 
bank deposits, with a book balance of $9,834,075, comprised of $2,475,751 which was 
covered by FDIC insurance and $7,451,013 which was collateralized with securities 
held by the financial institution’s agent but not in the District’s name. 
 
Investments 
The District is required to comply with State statutes which specify instruments meeting 
defined rating, maturity and concentration risk criteria in which local governments may 
invest. State statutes do not address custodial risk. The District’s investment policy 
follows State statutes, and allows the following investments. 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency securities 
 Certain international agency securities 
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 
 Commercial paper 
 Local government investment pools 
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
 Certain money market funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 

 
Interest Rate Risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to an 
original maturity of five years unless the governing board authorizes the investment for 
a period in excess of five years. 
 
Credit Risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to the highest 
rating issued by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations 
(NRSROs). State statutes also limit investments in money market funds to those that 
maintain a constant share price, with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance with 
Rule 2a-7, and either have assets of one billion dollars or the highest rating issued by a 
NRSRO.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – State statues do not limit the amount the District may 
invest in one issuer. 
 
Local Government Investment Pools – At December 31, 2012, the District had 
$11,647,269 and $8,831,053 invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset 
Trust (COLOTRUST), and the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE), 
investment vehicles established by State statute for local government entities in 
Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and 
enforces the requirements of creating and operating COLOTRUST and CSAFE. 
COLOTRUST and CSAFE operate similarly to a money market fund and each share is 
equal in value to $1.00. Investments of COLOTRUST and CSAFE are limited to those 
allowed by State statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and 
depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. 
The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the participating 
governments. COLOTRUST and CSAFE are rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.  
 
The District has interest rate risk related only to the investment in COLOTRUST and 
CSAFE. At December 31, 2012, COLOTRUST’s portfolio had a weighted average 
maturity of 35 days to reset and 55 days to maturity. Also, at December 31, 2012, 
CSAFE had a weighted average maturity of 51 days. 
 

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 
 
  Transfers In   Transfers Out   Amount  
 Sewer Fund   General Fund  $ 200,000 
 Water Fund   General Fund   340,000 
 Debt Service Fund   Water Fund   72,202 
 Debt Service Fund   Sewer Fund   59,366 

  Capital Projects Fund   Water Fund    16,500,000 
  Capital Projects Fund   Debt Service    6,500,000 
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Availability charges collected by the Water and Sewer Funds are required by State 
statue to be used for debt service and are transferred to the Debt Service Fund. The 
transfers from the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Funds were determined during 
the budget process. The transfers to the Capital Projects Fund from the Water and Debt 
Service funds are to accumulate resources to build the new water treatment plant. 
 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012, is summarized below: 
 
    Balances         Balances  
    12/31/11   Additions   Deletions   12/31/12  
Governmental Activities 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 Furniture and equipment $ 97,985 $ 0 $ 0 $ 97,985 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated  97,985  0  0  97,985 
Less accumulated depreciation 
 furniture and equipment  (96,141)  (738)  0  (96,879) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (96,141)  (738)  0  (96,879) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  1,844  (738)  0  1,106 
Governmental Activities Capital  
 Assets $ 1,844 $ (738) $ 0 $ 1,106 
Business-Type Activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
 Land $ 204,511 $ 0 $ 0 $ 204,511 
 Tap fees  5,152,150  0  0  5,152,150 
 Water rights  1,139,239  0  0  1,139,239 
Total Capital Assets, Not Being  
 Depreciated  6,495,900  0  0  6,495,900 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 Land improvements  5,514  0  0  5,514 
 Collection and distribution  48,351,916  317,488  0  48,669,404 
 Vehicles and equipment  361,344  0  0  361,344 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
  Depreciated  48,718,774  317,488  0  49,036,262 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
 Land improvements  (5,514)  0  0  (5,514) 
 Collection and distribution   (15,755,202)  (1,478,933)  0  (17,234,135) 
 Vehicles and equipment  (342,757)  (11,145)  0  (353,902) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (16,103,473)  (1,490,078)    (17,593,551) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  32,615,301  (1,172,590)  0  31,442,711 
Business-Type Activities Capital  
 Assets, Net $ 39,111,201 $ (1,172,590) $ 0 $ 37,938,611 
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
All water rights of the District are for sale at December 31, 2012. 
 
Depreciated expense was charged to programs of the District as follows: 
 
Governmental activities 
 General Government $ 738 
Business-type activities 
 Water $ 569,789 
 Sewer  920,289 
  Total $ 1,490,078 
 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the governmental activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2012: 
 
     Balance         Balance  Due Within  
    12/31/11    Additions   Payments   12/31/12   One Year  
Governmental Activities 
Accrued Compensated  
 Absences $ 16,091 $ 1,314 $ 0 $ 17,405 $ 0 
2005 CWRPDA Loan  7,450,000  0  395,000  7,055,000  410,000 
Loan premium  324,406  0  23,133  301,273  0 
 
 Total $ 7,790,497 $ 1,314 $ 418,133 $ 7,373,678 $ 410,000 
 
Compensated absences are expected to be liquidated primarily with revenues of the 
General Fund. 
 
2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Colorado Water Resources and 
Power Development Authority and proceeds were loaned to the District to finance a 
sewer pipeline and two pump stations. Principal and interest payments are due semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1, through 2026. Interest accrues at the rate of 
3.35% per annum. 
 
Future payments for the outstanding debt are as follows: 
 
       Interest and      
Year Ended December 31,  Principal   Admin. Fees   Total  
2013  $ 410,000 $ 274,492 $ 684,492 
2014   425,000  261,587  686,587 
2015   435,000  248,209  683,209 
2016   450,000  234,517  684,517 
2017   465,000  220,353  685,353 
2018-2022   2,530,000  897,041  3,427,041 
2023-2026   2,340,000  466,522  2,806,522 
 
 Total  $ 7,055,000 $ 2,602,721 $ 9,657,721 
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Following are the long-term debt transactions of the business-type activities for the year 
ended December 31, 2012: 
 
    Balance        Balance   Due Within  
    12/31/11   Additions   Payments   12/31/12   One Year  
 Business-Type Activities 
 Accrued compensated  
  absences $ 101,412 $ 11,852 $ 0 $ 113,264 $ 0 
 
The District has a line of credit with a financial institution for $4,000,000 which is 
secured by the proprietary fund revenues. The interest rate on the note is variable and is 
the financial institution’s prime rate of 3.25%. The line of credit matures on May 1, 
2013. No amounts were drawn on the line during the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2012. 
 

NOTE 6 - PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
For these risks of loss, with the exception of workers’ compensation, the District carries 
commercial insurance. For workers’ compensation, the District participates in the 
Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool, a separate and independent 
governmental and legal entity formed by intergovernmental agreement. 
 
The purposes of the Pool are to provide members defined liability, property, and 
workers compensation coverages and to assist members in preventing and reducing 
losses and injuries to property and to persons or property which might result in claims 
being made against members of the Pool, their employees and officers. 
 
It is the intent of the members of the Pool to create an entity in perpetuity which will 
administer and use funds contributed by the members to defend and indemnify, in 
accordance with the bylaws, any member of the Pool against stated liability of loss, to 
the limit of the financial resources of the Pool. It is also the intent of the members to 
have the Pool provide continuing stability and availability of needed coverages at 
reasonable costs. All income and assets of the Pool shall be at all times dedicated to the 
exclusive benefit of its members. The Pool is a separate legal entity and the District 
does not approve budgets nor does it have the ability to significantly affect the 
operations of the Pool. 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS 
 

Profit Sharing Plan 
 
The District has established a profit sharing pension plan on behalf of all District 
employees. The contribution requirements of plan participants and the District are 
established and may be amended by the Board of Directors. All employees are eligible 
to participate in the plan upon employment, and become fully vested after five years of 
service. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The District may contribute up to 15% of each participating employee’s compensation. 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the District contributed $94,164 to the Plan, 
representing 15% of employee compensation. All contributions are deposited to the 
individual employee’s self-directed accounts and the District has no further fiduciary 
responsibility for the plan assets. 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all District employees 
and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All plan 
investments are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the employees. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable emergency. 

 
NOTE 8 - CONCENTRATIONS 

 
One company paid 10.3% of all revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012. This 
same company was responsible for 26.9% of the property tax collected. 
 

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Tabor Amendment 
 
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20 
(the “Amendment”) which has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending 
abilities, and other specific requirements of state and local government. The 
Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The District believes it is 
in compliance with the requirements of the Amendment. 
 
In November, 2001, the District electors allowed the District to spend the full proceeds 
of any taxes, fees, charges, grants, rates, tolls or any other revenues collected in fiscal 
year 2000 and in all subsequent fiscal years without regard to any limitation contained 
in the Amendment. 
 
The District has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying 
expenditures, as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2012, the emergency 
reserve of $7,441 was reported as a restriction of fund balance in the General Fund.
 
The District has entered into a contract to purchase sewer treatment services from the 
City of Littleton, Colorado. This City is treating all wastewater of the District. The 
contract is irrevocable by the District as long as bonds to finance the City’s treatment 
plant are still outstanding. 
 
The District has entered into an agreement to purchase is water from the City of Aurora, 
Colorado. This agreement expires in 2105 and then automatically and continuously 
renews for another ninety years. As part of the agreement with the City of Aurora, the 
District will pay the City development and connection fee of $6,575 per customer. This 
fee is due in December 2015, although the District may purchase taps before that date. 
The District estimates that this fee will be $24,985,000. 
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
In November 2011, the District electors approved an increase in District debt of 
$6,500,000. These funds will be used to build a water treatment plant. 
 
The District has agreed to sell its waste water treatment plant to another water and 
sanitation district. This total sale price is $4,000,000 plus $300 for every tap sold by the 
buyer. The District anticipates a total minimum price of $7,000,000. The District has 
received, and included in deferred income, the amount of $200,000 at December 31, 
2012. 
 
During the 1970’s the District presold approximately 2,500 taps. For the year ended 
December 31, 2011 each prepaid tap had a credit value of $14,757 against the total tap 
cost of approximately $37,125. At December 31, 2011, 87 presold taps remained.
 

NOTE 10 - CHANGE IN ACOUNTING PRINCIPLES 
 

 During the year ended December 31, 2012, the District implemented GASB 
Statement Number 62 Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This 
statement incorporates into the GASB authoritative literature certain guidance from 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, the 
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and the Accounting Research Bulletins of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Committee on 
Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30, 1989 which does not 
conflict with GASB pronouncements. Implementation of this standard did not have a 
material effect on the District. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the District implemented GASB 
Statement Number 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. As the result of implementing this 
statement the computation of equity on the Statement of Net Position was changed 
and equity was retitled to be net position. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the District also early implemented GASB 
Statement Number 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This 
statement requires certain items which were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities to be reported as deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and as revenues or expenditures. As a result of implementing this statement, 
loan issuance costs of $62,491which were amortized under the prior standards are 
expensed in the new standards. In addition, unearned property taxes were reclassified 
to deferred inflows of resources. 
 

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
During 2013, the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) approved the District’s 
application for a thirty year loan. The loan principal balance shall not exceed 
$18,538,550 at an annual interest rate of 3.25%. 
 



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
     Original      Variance  
     And Final      Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 786,067 $ 795,329 $ 9,262 
 Specific ownership taxes    50,000  60,450  10,450 
 Investment income    2,000  3,439  1,439 
 Miscellaneous revenues    500  0  (500) 
 
  Total Revenues    838,567  859,218  20,651 
 
Expenditures 
 Salaries and benefits    120,000  119,713  287 
 Accounting and audit    20,000  17,587  2,413 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Director fees    8,000  7,000  1,000 
 Election expense    20,000  0  20,000 
 Education    20,000  9,616  10,384 
 Engineering    15,000  14,677  323 
 Insurance    12,000  8,944  3,056 
 Legal fees    20,000  16,156  3,844 
 Miscellaneous    5,000  2,608  2,392 
 Office expense    20,000  10,555  9,445 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions   1,500  0  1,500 
 Rent     15,000  9,427  5,573 
 Repairs and maintenance    15,000  11,332  3,668 
 Treasurer fees    15,000  10,629  4,371 
 Utilities    7,500  5,938  1,562 
 Vehicle expense    3,000  3,860  (860) 
 Capital outlay    10,000  0  10,000 
 
  Total Expenditures    328,000  248,042  79,958 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  510,567  611,176  100,609 
 
Other Financing Uses 
 Transfers out    (726,855)  (540,000)  186,855 
 
  Net Change in Fund Balances  $ (216,288)  71,176 $ 287,464 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      545,029 
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 616,205 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 
 
 
NOTE 1 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 Budgets 
 
 Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the District. Budgets for the General and 

Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgetary comparisons for the proprietary funds are 
presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis. Capital outlay and debt principal are 
budgeted as expenditures, and depreciation is not budgeted. 

 
 The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 

financial statements. 
 

 In September, District management submits to the Board of Directors a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

 
 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
 Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 

resolution. 
 

 District management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between 
departments within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total 
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
 All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado governments may not exceed 

budgeted appropriations at the fund level. 
 
 
 



 

 

INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
  Original      Variance  
  And Final      Positive  
  Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Investment income $ 0 $ 9,143 $ 9,143 
 
Expenditures 
 Capital outlay  23,000,000  0  23,000,000 
 
 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
  Expenditures  (23,000,000)  9,143  23,009,143 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  23,949,635  23,000,000  (949,635) 
 
  Net Change in Fund Balances  949,635  23,009,143  22,059,508 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning  0  0  0 
 
Fund Balances, Ending $ 949,635 $ 23,009,143 $ 22,059,508 
 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
  Original      Variance  
  And Final      Positive  
  Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 893,670 $ 881,957 $ (11,713) 
 Specific ownership taxes  80,000  75,817  (4,183) 
 Investment income  10,000  9,601  (399) 
 
  Total Revenues  983,670  967,375  (16,295) 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  15,000  14,463  537 
 Principal  395,000  395,000  0 
 Interest  286,926  286,926  0 
 
 Total Expenditures  696,926  696,389  537 
 
 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
  Expenditures  286,744  270,986  (15,758) 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  118,000  131,568  13,568 
 Transfers out  (6,663,480)  (6,500,000)  163,480 
 
  Net Change in Fund  
 Balances  (6,258,736)  (6,097,446)  161,290 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning  6,316,736  6,351,422  34,686 
 
Fund Balances, Ending   $ 58,000 $ 253,976 $ 195,976 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

WATER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,720,000 $ 2,801,685 $ 81,685 
 Permit fees    3,300  4,375  1,075 
 Other water sales    138,022  212,060  74,038 
 Miscellaneous    89,200  98,368  9,168 
 Investment income    75,000  32,603  (42,397) 
 Availability charges    60,000  72,202  12,202 
 Capital charges    325,000  487,504  162,504 
 System development charges   44,064  78,838  34,774 
 Transfers in    340,000  340,000  0 
 
  Total Revenues    3,794,586  4,127,635  333,049 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    20,000  26,686  (6,686) 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    15,000  17,138  (2,138) 
 Contract labor    10,000  8,400  1,600 
 Education    25,000  36,049  (11,049) 
 Engineering and other professional costs   125,000  184,705  (59,705) 
 GPS/GIS    15,000  11,518  3,482 
 Insurance    23,000  18,315  4,685 
 Lab and test fees    17,000  10,756  6,244 
 Legal fees    40,000  38,739  1,261 
 Meter expense    150,000  74,045  75,955 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  8,077  3,923 
 Office expense    30,000  21,813  8,187 
 Operating supplies    90,000  87,312  2,688 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    390,000  407,916  (17,916) 
 Repairs and maintenance    250,000  235,132  14,868 
 Utilities    105,000  96,865  8,135 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  13,089  1,911 
 Dominion    35,000  22,920  12,080 
 Water cost    1,500,000  1,325,900  174,100 
 Capital outlay    1,015,000  228,225  786,775 
 Conservation rebates    10,000  4,250  5,750 
 Chatfield reallocation    20,000  0  20,000 
 Water rights capital    20,000  5726  14,274 
 Transfers out    17,143,400  16,572,202  571,198 
 
  Total Expenditures    21,075,400  19,455,778  1,619,622 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ (17,280,814)  (15,328,143) $ 1,952,671 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

WATER FUND (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay     $ 228,225   
 Depreciation      (569,789)   
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     (15,669,707)   
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      34,324,715   
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 18,655,008   
 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

SEWER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 1,430,000 $ 1,451,880 $ 21,880 
 Charges for services – Lockheed 
  Martin Agreement  415,000  342,010  (72,990) 
 Permit fees    3,300  8,095  4,795 
 Ravenna service charge    20,000  22,032  2,032 
 Miscellaneous    42,000  41,025  (975) 
 Investment income    1,500  4,053  2,553 
 Availability charges    58,000  59,366  1,366 
 Capital charges    132,000  125,715  (6,285) 
 System development charges   30,252  20,052  (10,200) 
 Transfer in    200,000  200,000  0 
 
  Total Revenues    2,332,052  2,274,228  (57,824) 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    20,000  16,718  3,282 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Dominion expense    1,000  0  1,000 
 Education    20,000  9,203  10,797 
 Engineering    75,000  144,915  (69,915) 
 GPS/GIS    15,000  11,518  3,482 
 Insurance    23,000  18,315  4,685 
 Lab and test fees    300  300  0 
 Legal fees    20,000  26,327  (6,327) 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  2,531  9,469 
 Office expense    30,000  21,113  8,887 
 Operating supplies    45,000  37,351  7,649 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    1,500  3,720  (2,220) 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    390,000  388,317  1,683 
 Repairs and maintenance    200,000  161,717  38,283 
 Service fees    810,000  732,494  77,506 
 Utilities    115,000  78,273  36,727 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  13,182  1,818 
 Capital outlay    648,000  89,263  558,737 
 Transfer out    237,380  59,366  178,014 
 
  Total Expenditures    2,679,180  1,814,623  864,557 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ (347,128)  459,605 $ 806,733 
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay      89,263 
 Depreciation      (920,289) 
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     (371,421) 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      26,287,573 
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 25,916,152 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
Littleton, Colorado 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities and each major fund of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each 
major fund of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District, as of December 31, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other-Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages iii through 
ix and 21 and 22 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The individual major fund schedules 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The individual major fund schedules are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
April 23, 2014 
Denver, Colorado 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 
As management of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District (the District), we offer readers 
of the District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the District for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Assets exceeded liabilities by $62,998,739 at the close of the fiscal year. Of this amount, 
$30,882,833 is unrestricted and available to meet ongoing and future obligations of the 
District. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $25,291,977. 

• Total net position increased by $2,035,199. 
• Total cash and investments increased by $1,922,844 as compared to the prior year. 
• General fund expenditures increased by $2,093 as compared to the prior year. 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was     

$ 542,712 or 216.97% of total general fund expenditures. 
• Total debt decreased by $410,000 or 5.8% during the current fiscal year. The reason for 

this decrease was the scheduled payment of principal on long-term debt.  
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods.  
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are 
principally to be supported by ad valorem taxes (governmental activities) from other functions 
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include the 
financing, construction of, and maintenance of public infrastructure improvements constructed or 
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acquired by the District. The business-type activities of the District include water and sewer 
facilities construction, maintenance and operations. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1-2 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be 
divided into two categories – Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. The governmental funds 
use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  During the year ended December 2013, the 
District implemented GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for each of the funds - general fund and debt service 
fund - all of which are considered to be major funds. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3-5 of this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer 
operations. These services are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the water and sewer operations, which are considered to be major funds of the 
District. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 6-9 of this report. 
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Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to financial statements can be found on pages 10-20 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information. The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for 
its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement for this fund has been provided as required 
supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The general fund budget 
statements and notes are found on pages 21-22 of this report. 
 
Other information. The report includes individual fund schedules. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided in this section for the debt service fund, the water fund and the 
sewer fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. The budget statements are found on 
pages 23-27 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. The District’s net position was $62,998,739 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. Of this amount $30,882,833 is unrestricted and is available to meet the District’s 
ongoing financial obligations. 
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Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

27,007,485$  7,861,650$    34,869,135$  25,573,977$ 7,068,654$    32,642,631$  
-                -                -                -                2,883             2,883             
663                37,458,372    37,459,035    1,106            37,938,611    37,939,717    

Total Assets 27,008,148    45,320,022    72,328,170    25,575,083   45,010,148    70,585,231    

537,660         448,889         986,549         524,372        325,724         850,096         
6,515,338      115,504         6,630,842      6,963,678     113,264         7,076,942      

Total Liabilit ies 7,052,998      564,393         7,617,391      7,488,050     438,988         7,927,038      

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable Revenue 1,712,040      -                1,712,040      1,694,653     -                1,694,653      

(6,922,477)    37,458,372    30,535,895    (7,356,167)    37,938,611    30,582,444    
1,580,011      -                1,580,011      261,417        -                261,417         

23,585,576    7,297,257      30,882,833    23,487,130   6,632,549      30,119,679    
Total Net Position 18,243,110$  44,755,629$  62,998,739$  16,392,380$ 44,571,160$  60,963,540$  

Unrestricted Net Positio

Capital Assets, net

Current Liabilit ies
Long-Term Obligations

Restricted Net Position

Net Investment in
  Capital Assets

Statements of Net Position

2013 2012

Current Assets
Other Assets

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

-$               4,913,424$    4,913,424$   -$              4,981,530$    4,981,530$    

Contributions -                 129,655         129,655        -                131,568         131,568         

Contributions -                 1,300,101      1,300,101     -                712,109         712,109         

1,680,142      -                1,680,142     1,677,286     -                1,677,286      

Taxes 142,841         -                142,841        136,267        -                136,267         
31,933           6,649             38,582          22,183          36,656           58,839           

Total Revenue 1,854,916      6,349,829      8,204,745     1,835,736     5,861,863      7,697,599      

263,853         -                263,853        264,557        -                264,557         

Debt 246,179         -                246,179        258,613        -                258,613         
-                 5,659,514      5,659,514     -                5,811,423      5,811,423      

Total Expenses 510,032         5,659,514      6,169,546     523,170        5,811,423      6,334,593      

1,344,884      690,315         2,035,199     1,312,566     50,440           1,363,006      

505,846         (505,846)       -                16,091,568   (16,091,568)  -                

1,850,730      184,469         2,035,199     17,404,134   (16,041,128)  1,363,006      

16,392,380    44,571,160    60,963,540   (1,011,754)    60,612,288    59,600,534    
18,243,110$  44,755,629$  62,998,739$ 16,392,380$ 44,571,160$  60,963,540$  

Statements of Activities

2013 2012

Program Revenue

Operating Grants and 
Charges for Services

Interest on Long-Term
General Government

Expenses

Revenue

Excess

General Revenue

Capital Grants and 

Investment Income

Specific Ownership
Property Taxes

Net Position - Ending
Net Position - Beginning

Change in Net Position

Transfers

Water/Sewer Facilit ies
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the District’s net position by 
$1,850,730, several highlights are as follows: 
 

• Property taxes increased $2,856 (.17%) over the prior year.  
• Specific ownership taxes increased $6,574. 
• General Government expenses decreased by $704 this year. 
• A new subdivision was formed due to the inclusion of the Plum Valley Heights 

neighborhood into the District. 
 
Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the District’s net position by 
$184,469. Some of the key elements of the change in net position are as follows: 
 

• Service charges decreased $68,106 (1.36%) over prior year. 
• Investment income decreased $30,007 due to decreasing interest rates, and the transfer to 

the Capital Projects Fund. 
• Total operating expenses are decreased $151,909 as a result of a decrease in operations 

expenses $164,670, and an increase in personnel expenses of $13,407. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful 
in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of 
the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $25,291,977 of which $542,712 constitutes unassigned fund balance, 
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion within the parameters established 
for each fund. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $542,712 out of a total fund balance of 
$680,328. In compliance with an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, the 
District has established an emergency reserve representing 3% of qualifying expenditures. At 
December 31, 2013, the emergency reserve was $8,129. 
 
The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1,571,882, all of which is restricted for the 
repayment of long-term indebtedness. The long term loans payable as of December 31, 2013 is 
$6,645,000. 
 
On November 1, 2011 the District voted in favor of Ballot Issue 5A.  This positive vote 
authorized the District debt to be increased by a total of $ 6,500,000 for the purpose of being the 
repayment of loans advanced from the District’s water fund to the District’s sewer fund to 
finance a portion of the costs of improvements to the District’s sanitary sewer collection and 
transmission system.  This debt was repaid from the District’s current property tax fund balance 
established by the District pursuant to voter authorization obtained at the November 2002 
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election and without future increases in the annual taxes authorized by the November 2002 
election. 
 
Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary fund at the end of the year amounted to $7,279,257. 
The total net position of the District’s proprietary funds as of December 31, 2013 was 
$44,755,629. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in 
the discussion of the District’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The District’s total expenditures for 2013 did not exceed the final budgeted appropriation. The 
difference between the original and final budgeted revenue of $845,535 and the actual revenue of 
$854,258 was $8,723. The difference between the original budgeted expenditures of $325,000 
and the actual expenditures of $250,135 was $74,865. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The District has invested $37,459,035 in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its 
governmental and business-type activities as of the year ended December 31, 2013. This 
investment in capital assets includes water and sewer facilities, water rights and vehicles and 
equipment. This includes $967,268 of upgrades and improvements to the District’s collection 
and distribution systems in 2013. 
 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 beginning on page 
16 of this report. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total outstanding long-term debt of 
$6,940,338.  Accrued compensated absences accounts for $17,198 of this amount. The remaining 
$6,923,140 is related to the District’s 2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds through the Colorado 
Water Resources and Power Development Authority (2005 CWRPDA) which are due annually 
through 2026 and pay interest rates of 3.35% semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.  
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 beginning on 
page 17 of this report. 
 
Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
Government funds. The 2014 budget reflects a slight increase in property tax revenue.  The 
total assessed value for 2014 is $ 129,054,751 up from $127,743,991 in 2013. The total mill levy 
in 2013 is 13.2658 mills. General fund expenditures are expected to increase due to natural 
growth of the District. The District did include a Capital Projects fund budget for 2013 of 
$36,313,150, representing purchase of a permanent water supply from the City of Aurora and 
expenses related to the construction of a new Water Treatment Plant. 
Proprietary funds. Water and sewer sales are expected to increase slightly over 2013 as a result 
of some growth and potential rate increase. Expenditures are expected to increase slightly also. 
The District is anticipating an additional rate increase from the City of Aurora, which is the 
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District’s water source, and also from the City of Littleton, which is the District’s wastewater 
treatment provider. 
 
Capital Projects. 
 
Denver Water Emergency Interconnect: 
In 2013 the District completed our emergency interconnect with Denver Water which would 
allow the District to obtain potable water in an emergency situation such as a Water Treatment 
Plant failure.  The District constructed emergency connections on two of Denver Water’s main 
pipelines coming from Denver Water’s Foothills Water Treatment Facility.  The cost for the 
project was $613,856. 
 
Replacement Water Treatment Plant: 
The District began the design of the replacement Water Treatment Plant in 2013.  This is the 
beginning of a 3 year project from start to finish.  Design will continue through 2014 with 
construction in 2015 and into 2016. 
 
Aurora Water Supply: 
 
The District has entered into an agreement to purchase its water supply from the City of Aurora, 
Colorado. This agreement expires in 2105 and then automatically and continuously renews for 
another ninety years. As part of the agreement with the City of Aurora, the District will pay the 
City development and connection fee of $ 6,575 per customer. This fee is due December 2015, 
although the District may purchase taps before that date. The District estimates that this fee will 
be $ 24,985,000. It is anticipated the District will purchase these fees during 2014 from a loan 
the District has received from the Colorado Water Conservation Board. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Roxborough Water & 
Sanitation District’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to: Roxborough Water & Sanitation District, 6222 N. 
Roxborough Park Road, Littleton, CO 80125. 



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
1 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
 
  Govern-  Business-  
   mental   Type  Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2013   2012  
 
Assets 
Cash and investments $ 25,274,184 $ 6,961,057 $ 32,235,241 $ 30,312,397 
Accounts receivable  21,027  848,073  869,100  638,464 
Internal balances  (11,306)  11,306  0  0 
Property taxes receivable  1,712,040  0  1,712,040  1,694,653 
Prepaid expenses  11,540  41,214  52,754  0 
Capital assets, not being 
  Depreciated  0  6,862,071  6,862,071  6,495,900 
Capital assets, net of 
 accumulated depreciation  663  30,596,301  30,596,964  31,443,817 
 
 Total Assets  27,008,148  45,320,022  72,328,170  70,585,231 
 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable  3,468  169,360  172,828  41,328 
Deposits   0  25,996  25,996  25,996 
Deferred revenue  0  253,533  253,533  258,400 
Accrued interest payable  109,192  0  109,192  114,372 
Non current liabilities 
 Due within one year  425,000  0  425,000  410,000 
 Due in more than one year   6,515,338  115,504  6,630,842  7,076,942 
 
 Total Liabilities  7,052,998  564,393  7,617,391  7,927,038 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenue-property  
 taxes   1,712,040  0  1,712,040  1,694,653 
 
Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets  (6,922,477)  37,458,372  30,535,895  30,582,444 
Restricted for debt service  1,571,882  0  1,571,882  253,976 
Restricted for emergencies  8,129  0  8,129  7,441 
Unrestricted  23,585,576  7,297,257  30,882,833  30,119,679 
 
 Total Net Position $ 18,243,110 $ 44,755,629  $ 62,998,739 $ 60,963,540 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
 
  Program Revenues  
     Charges   Operating   Capital  
     for   Grants and   Grants and  
  Expenses   Services  Contributions Contributions 
 
Function/Programs 
Governmental Activities 
 General government $ 263,853 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
 Interest on long-term debt  246,179  0  0  0 
 
Total Governmental Activities  510,032  0  0  0 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 Water   3,028,075  3,090,602  72,444  1,110,500 
 Sewer   2,631,439  1,822,822  57,211  189,601 
 
  Total Business-Type  
   Activities  5,659,514  4,913,424  129,655  1,300,101 
 
Total Primary Government $ 6,169,546 $ 4,913,424 $ 129,655 $ 1,300,101 
 

General Revenues 
 Property taxes 
 Specific ownership taxes 
 Investment income 
Transfers 
 
 Total General Revenues and 
  Transfers 
 
 Change in net position 
 
Net Position, Beginning 
 
Net Position, Ending 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
  Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position  
  Primary Government  
  Govern-   Business-        
  mental   Type   Totals  
  Activities   Activities   2013   2012  
 
 
 
 $ (263,853) $ 0 $ (263,853) $ (264,557) 
  (246,179)  0  (246,179)  (258,613) 
 
  (510,032)  0  (510,032)  (523,170) 
 
 
  0  1,245,471  1,245,471  529,892 
  0  (561,805)  (561,805)  (516,108) 
 
 
  0  683,666  683,666  13,784 
 
  (510,032)  683,666  173,634  (509,386) 
 
 
  1,680,142  0  1,680,142  1,677,286 
  142,841  0  142,841  136,267 
  31,933  6,649  38,582  58,839 
  505,846  (505,846)  0  0 
 
 
  2,360,762  (499,197)  1,861,565  1,872,392 
 
  1,850,730  184,469  2,035,199  1,363,006 
 
  16,392,380  44,571,160  60,963,540  59,600,534 
 
 $ 18,243,110 $ 44,755,629 $ 62,998,739 $ 60,963,540 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
 
            Total Governmental 
    Capital   Debt  Plum Valley  Funds  

  General   Projects   Service   Heights   2013   2012  
 
Assets 
 Cash and investments $ 667,707 $ 23,039,767 $ 1,566,710 $ 0 $ 25,274,184 $ 23,869,787 
 Accounts receivable  4,549  0  5,172  11,306  21,027  9,537 
 Property taxes receivable  801,172  0  910,868  0  1,712,040  1,694,653 
 Prepaid items  11,540  0  0  0  11,540  0 
 
   Total Assets $ 1,484,968 $ 23,039,767 $ 2,482,750 $ 11,306 $ 27,018,791 $ 25,573,977 
 
Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 
 Accounts payable  3,468  0  0  0  3,468  0 
 Due to other funds  0  0  0  11,306  11,306  0 
 
   Total Liabilities  3,468  0  0  11,306  14,774  0 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 Unavailable revenue 
  property taxes  801,172  0  910,868  0  1,712,040  1,694,653 
 
Fund Balances 
 Nonspendable 
  Prepaid items  11,540  0  0  0  11,540  0 
 Restricted for: 
  Emergencies  8,129  0  0  0  8,129  7,441 
  Debt service  0  0  1,571,882  0  1,571,882  253,976 
 Committed to: 
  Construction of water 
   treatment plant  0  23,039,767  0  0  23,039,767  23,009,143 
 Assigned to: 
  Subsequent year’s budget: 
   Appropriation of fund  
   balance  117,947  0  0  0  117,947  234,596 
 Unassigned  542,712  0  0  0  542,712  374,168 
 
   Total Fund Balances  680,328  23,039,767  1,571,882  0  25,291,977  23,879,324 
 
   Total Liabilities, Deferred 
   Inflows of Resources 
   and Fund Balances $ 1,484,968 $ 23,039,767 $ 2,482,750 $ 11,306 $ 27,018,791 $ 25,573,977 
               (Continued) 



 

 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
 
Total fund balances of governmental funds     $ 25,291,977  $ 23,879,324 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. This amount is net of 
accumulated depreciation of $97,322.      663  1,106 

 
Long-term liabilities, including related items, including loans payable 
($6,645,000), loan premium ($278,140), accrued compensated absences 
($17,198), and accrued interest payable ($109,192) are not due and 
payable in the current year and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.    (7,049,530)   (7,488,050) 

 
Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities     $ 18,243,110  $ 16,392,380 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
 
            Total Governmental 
    Capital   Debt  Plum Valley  Funds  

  General   Projects   Service   Heights   2013   2012  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 788,605 $ 0 $ 891,537 $ 0 $ 1,680,142 $ 1,677,286 
 Specific ownership taxes  64,505  0  78,336  0  142,841  136,267 
 Investment income  1,148  30,624  161  0  31,933  22,183 
 Miscellaneous revenues  0  0  0  20,822  20,822  0 
 
  Total Revenues  854,258  30,624  970,034  20,822  1,875,738  1,835,736 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  250,135  0  13,482  20,822  284,439  262,505 
 Debt service 
  Principal  0  0  410,000  0  410,000  395,000 
  Interest and fiscal charges 0  0  274,492  0  274,492  286,926 
 
  Total Expenditures  250,135  0  697,974  20,822  968,931  944,431 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over 
   Expenditures  604,123  30,624  272,060  0  906,807  891,305 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  0  0  1,045,846  0  1,045,846  23,131,568 
 Transfers out  (540,000)  0  0  0  (540,000)  (7,040,000) 
 
  Total Other Financing 
   Sources (Uses)  (540,000)  0  1,045,846  0  505,846  16,091,568 
 
  Net change in fund 
   balances  64,123  30,624  1,317,906  0  1,412,653  16,982,873 
 
Fund balances, beginning  616,205  23,009,143  253,976  0  23,879,324  6,896,451 
 
Fund balances, ending $ 680,328 $ 23,039,767 $ 1,571,882 $ 0 $ 25,291,977 $ 23,879,324 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statements of activities are different because: 
 
    2013   2012  

Net change in fund balances, total governmental 
funds  $ 1,412,653 $ 16,982,873 

 
Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets 
are reported in governmental funds as 
expenditures. However, for governmental activities 
those costs are shown in the statement of net 
position and allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as annual depreciation expense in the 
statement of activities. This amount represents 
depreciation expense in the current year.  (443)  (738) 
 
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources 
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net 
position. This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and 
related items: amortization of loan premium 
$23,133, and change in accrued interest payable 
$5,180.  28,313  28,313 
 
Loan payments $410,000 and changes in 
compensated absences $207 are expenditures in the 
governmental funds, but they change long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net position and do 
not affect the statement of activities.  410,207  393,686 

 
 Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 1,850,730  $ 17,404,134 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2013   2012  
 
Assets 
Current Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,445,289 $ 1,515,768 $ 6,961,057 $ 6,442,610 
 Accounts receivable  577,092  270,981  848,073  626,044 
 Due from other funds  11,306  0  11,306  0 
 Prepaid expenses  20,607  20,607  41,214  0 
 
 Total Current Assets  6,054,294  1,807,356  7,861,650  7,068,654 
 
Noncurrent Assets 
 Accounts receivable  0  0  0  2,883 
 Capital assets, net of 
  accumulated depreciation  13,457,037  24,001,335  37,458,372  37,938,611 
 
 Total Noncurrent Assets  13,457,037  24,001,335  37,458,372  37,941,494 
 
 Total Assets  19,511,331  25,808,691  45,320,022  45,010,148 
 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
 Accounts payable  123,992  45,368  169,360  41,328 
 Deposits  18,600  7,396  25,996  25,996 
 Deferred revenues  53,533  200,000  253,533  258,400 
 
 Total Current Liabilities  196,125  252,764  448,889  325,724 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
 Accrued compensated 
  absences  57,752  57,752  115,504  113,264 
 
 Total Noncurrent Liabilities  57,752  57,752  115,504  113,264 
 
 Total Liabilities  253,877  310,516  564,393  438,988 
 
Net Position 
 Net investment in capital 
  assets  13,457,037  24,001,335  37,458,372  37,938,611 
 Unrestricted  5,800,417  1,496,840  7,297,257  6,632,549 
 
 Total Net Position $ 19,257,454 $ 25,498,175 $ 44,755,629 $ 44,571,160 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
 
         Total  
  Water   Sewer   2013   2012  
 
Operating Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,651,112 $ 1,481,358 $ 4,132,470 $ 4,253,565 
 Charges for services 
  Lockheed Martin 
  Agreement  0  307,299  307,299  342,010 
 Permit fees  1,550  5,670  7,220  12,470 
 Reimbursed expenses  169,340  0  169,340  0 
 Outside treatment  176,018  22,412  198,430  234,092 
 Miscellaneous  92,582  6,083  98,665  139,393 
 
 Total Operating Revenues  3,090,602  1,822,822  4,913,424  4,981,530 
 
Operating Expenses  
 Personnel services  404,820  404,820  809,640  796,233 
 Operations  2,052,494  1,307,948  3,360,442  3,525,112 
 Depreciation  570,761  918,671  1,489,432  1,490,078 
 
 Total Operating Expenses  3,028,075  2,631,439  5,659,514  5,811,423 
  
 Operating Income (Loss)  62,527  (808,617)  (746,090)  (829,893) 
 
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
 Investment income  5,610  1,039  6,649  36,656 
 Availability charges  72,444  57,211  129,655  131,568 
 
 Total Non-Operating 
  Revenue (Expenses)  78,054  58,250  136,304  168,224 
 
 Net Income (Loss) Before  
  Transfers and Capital 
   contributions 140,581  (750,367)  (609,786)  (661,669) 
 Transfer in  340,000  200,000  540,000  540,000 
 Transfer out  (988,635)  (57,211)  (1,045,846)  (16,631,568) 
 Capital contributions  1,110,500  189,601  1,300,101  712,109 
 
  Change in net position  602,446  (417,977)  184,469  (16,041,128) 
 
Net position, beginning  18,655,008  25,916,152  44,571,160  60,612,288 
 
Net position, ending $ 19,257,454 $ 25,498,175 $ 44,755,629 $ 44,571,160 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2013   2012  
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 Cash received from customers $ 2,679,756 $ 1,871,305 $ 4,551,061 $ 4,960,784 
 Cash payments to suppliers  (2,035,383)  (1,291,472)  (3,326,855)  (3,625,337) 
 Cash payments to employees  (403,700)  (403,700)  (807,400)  (784,381) 
 Other cash received  261,922  6,083  268,005  139,393 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Operating Activities  502,595  182,216  684,811  690,459 
 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
 Transfers from other funds  340,000  200,000  540,000  540,000 
 Transfers to other funds  (988,635)  (57,211)  (1,045,846)  (16,631,568) 
 
  Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
   Non Financing Activities  (648,635)  142,789  (505,846)  (16,091,568) 
 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
 Acquisition and construction of  
  capital assets  (939,213)  (28,055)  (967,268)  (426,394) 
 Capital charges received  1,110,500  189,601  1,300,101  712,109 
 
  Net Cash Provided By Capital 
   and Related Financing Activities  171,287  161,546  332,833  285,715 
 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
 Purchases of investment  0  0  0  8,817,876 
 Investment income   5,610  1,039  6,649  36,656 
 
  Net Cash Provided by 
   Investing Activities  5,610  1,039  6,649  8,854,532 
 
Net increase (decrease)  30,857  487,590  518,447  (6,260,862) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning  5,414,432  1,028,178  6,442,610  12,703,472 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending  $ 5,445,289 $ 1,515,768 $ 6,961,057 $ 6,442,610
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
 
      Total  
  Water   Sewer   2013   2012  
 
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
 
 Operating income (loss) $ 62,527 $ (808,617) $ (746,090) $ (829,893) 
 Adjustments to reconcile operating  
 income (loss) to net cash provided 
 by operating activities: 
  Depreciation  570,761  918,671  1,489,432  1,490,078 
  Receipt of system availability charges  72,444  57,211  129,655  131,568 
  Changes in assets and liabilities: 
    Accounts receivable  (216,501)  (2,645)  (219,146)  (8,054) 
    Prepaid expenses  (20,607)  (20,607)  (41,214)  31,302 
    Due from other funds  (11,306)  0  (11,306)  0 
    Accounts payable  49,024  37,083  86,107  (131,527) 
    Deferred revenues  (4,867)  0  (4,867)  (4,867) 
    Accrued compensated absences  1,120  1,120  2,240  11,852 
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities$ 502,595 $ 182,216 $ 684,811 $ 690,459 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (“the District”), previously the 

Roxborough Park Metropolitan District, was formed on January 12, 1972, to provide 
water, sewer and fire protection services within its boundaries. Effective July 1, 1999, 
the District’s fire protection services were merged into the West Metro Fire Protection 
District (the “WMFP”). By intergovernmental agreement, the District conveyed 
ownership of the fire station and all fire equipment to the WMFP, along with property 
tax revenues related to these services. The District is governed by a five-member Board 
of Directors elected by the residents. 

 
 The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting 

principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. Following is a summary of the more 
significant policies. 

 
 Reporting Entity 
 The financial reporting entity consists of the District and organizations for which the 

District is financially accountable. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, 
departments and offices that are not legally separate are reported as part of the District. 
In addition, any legally separate organizations for which the District is financially 
accountable are considered part of the reporting entity. Financial accountability exists if 
the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and is able 
to impose its will on the organization, or if the organization provides benefits to, or 
imposes financial burdens on the District. Blended component units are, in substance, 
part of the primary government’s operations, even though they are legally separate 
entities. Thus blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the 
District. 

 
 Based upon the application of this criteria, the District reports Plum Valley Heights as a 

blended component unit. Colorado State Statutes allow for the formation of subdistricts. 
Under the statute, subdistricts are independent quasi-municipal corporations, for whom 
the District’s Board of Directors constitutes the Plum Valley Heights Board of 
Directors. In addition, management of the District is also management of the subdistrict. 
Plum Valley Heights does not prepare separate financial statements. 

 
 Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the District. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges for interfund services that are reasonably 
equivalent to the services provided. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

 
 The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 

given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment.  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. 
Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 

 
 The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

 
 Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current year or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year. For this purpose, the District 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal year. 

 
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and interest associated with the current year 
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of 
the current year. All other revenues are considered measurable and available only when 
cash is received by the District. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 

 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
 When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s 

practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
 In the fund financial statements, the District reports the following major governmental 

funds. 
 

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 (Continued) 
 The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of the 

government’s major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
  
 The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources accumulated for, and payments made on, 

long-term obligations of the District. 
 

The Plum Valley Heights Fund accounts for the activity in the subdistrict of Plum 
Valley Heights. This fund is reported as a special revenue fund, as the revenues derived 
from this subdistrict are used to support its operations. 

 
 Additionally, the District reports the following major proprietary funds. 
 
 The Water Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of water 

services. 
 
 The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities associated with the provision of sewer 

services. 
 
 Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets/Fund Balances 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and 

cash equivalents are defined as investments with original maturities of three months or 
less. Pooled cash and investments are categorized as cash equivalents. 

 
 Investments – Investments are stated at fair value. 
 
 Receivables – All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where appropriate, 

are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. At December 
31, 2013, the District expects to collect all accounts receivable balances. 

 
 Capital Assets – Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and 

infrastructure, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the 
fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

 
 Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

following estimated useful lives. 
 
 Collection and Distribution Systems 30-50 years  
 Vehicles and Equipment 3-10 years  
 
 Deferred Revenues – Deferred revenues include lease proceeds which have not been 

earned, and as more fully described in Note 9, amounts received from the sale of its 
waste water treatment plant. 

 
 Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – In addition to assets, the statement of 

financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued) 
 This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 

acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Accordingly, the item, 
unavailable revenue, is reported for property taxes levied in the current year 
butcollected for use in the next fiscal period. 

 
 Compensated Absences – Employees of the District are allowed to accumulate unused 

vacation and sick time. Upon termination of employment from the District, an employee 
will be compensated for all accrued vacation time, and for all accrued sick time at a rate 
of one day for every two days accumulated. A liability for these compensated absences 
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only when due. 

 
 Long-Term Debt – In the government-wide financial statements, and for the proprietary 

funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method. 

 
 In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt premiums and 

discounts during the current year. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. 
 
Fund Balance 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five 
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund 
balance can be spent. 
 
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
 
Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
 
Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes, determined by a 
formal action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is the highest level of 
decision making body for the District. Commitments may be established, modified, or 
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Board. 
 
Assigned – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Only the Board of 
Directors may assign fund balances for specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned – All other spendable amounts. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued) 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. 
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or unassigned fund 
balance is available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless 
the District has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

 
Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide Statement of Net Position is reported as restricted 
when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling legislation or 
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulators of 
other governments. 
 

 Property Taxes 
 Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1 and are levied the 

following January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on 
February 28 and June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and 
remits them to the District on a monthly basis. 

 
 Comparative Information 
 Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying 

financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s 
financial position and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion 
would make the financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain prior 
year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 

 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 At December 31, 2013, cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 
 Deposits   $ 10,618,997 
 Investments    21,616,244 
  
  Total $ 32,235,241 
 

Deposits 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local 
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by 
state regulations. Amounts on deposit in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by 
the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all 
public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust for 
all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be 
at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2013, the District had 
bank deposits, with a book balance of $10,618,997, comprised of $500,000 which was 
covered by FDIC insurance and $10,149,200 which was collateralized with securities 
held by the financial institution’s agent but not in the District’s name. 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 

15 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments 
The District is required to comply with State statutes which specify instruments meeting 
defined rating, maturity and concentration risk criteria in which local governments may 
invest. State statutes do not address custodial risk. The District’s investment policy 
follows State statutes, and allows the following investments. 

 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency securities 
 Certain international agency securities 
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 
 Commercial paper 
 Local government investment pools 
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
 Certain money market funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 

 
Interest Rate Risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to an 
original maturity of five years unless the governing board authorizes the investment for 
a period in excess of five years. 
 
Credit Risk – State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to the highest 
rating issued by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations 
(NRSROs). State statutes also limit investments in money market funds to those that 
maintain a constant share price, with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance with 
Rule 2a-7, and either have assets of one billion dollars or the highest rating issued by a 
NRSRO.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – State statues do not limit the amount the District may 
invest in one issuer. 
 
Local Government Investment Pools – At December 31, 2013, the District had 
$12,776,005 and $8,840,239 invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset 
Trust (COLOTRUST), and the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE), 
investment vehicles established by State statute for local government entities in 
Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and 
enforces the requirements of creating and operating COLOTRUST and CSAFE. 
COLOTRUST and CSAFE operate similarly to a money market fund and each share is 
equal in value to $1.00. Investments of COLOTRUST and CSAFE are limited to those 
allowed by State statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and 
depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. 
The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the participating 
governments. COLOTRUST and CSAFE are rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.  
 
The District has interest rate risk related only to the investment in COLOTRUST and 
CSAFE. At December 31, 2013, COLOTRUST’s portfolio had a weighted average 
maturity of 40 days to reset and 68 days to maturity. Also, at December 31, 2013, 
CSAFE had a weighted average maturity of 51 days. 
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 
 
  Transfers In   Transfers Out   Amount  
 Sewer Fund   General Fund  $ 200,000 
 Water Fund   General Fund   340,000 
 Debt Service Fund   Water Fund   988,635 
 Debt Service Fund   Sewer Fund   57,211 
 
Availability charges collected by the Water and Sewer Funds are required by State 
statue to be used for debt service and are transferred to the Debt Service Fund. The 
transfers from the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Funds were determined during 
the budget process. 
 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013, is summarized below: 
 
    Balances         Balances  
    12/31/12   Additions   Deletions   12/31/13  
Governmental Activities 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 Furniture and equipment $ 97,985 $ 0 $ 0 $ 97,985 
Less accumulated depreciation 
 Furniture and equipment  (96,879)  (443)  0  (97,322) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  1,106  (443)  0  663   
Governmental Activities Capital  
 Assets $ 1,106 $ (443) $ 0 $ 663 
Business-Type Activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
 Land $ 204,511 $ 0 $ 0 $ 204,511 
 Tap fees  5,152,150  0  0  5,152,150 
 Water rights  1,139,239  0  0  1,139,239 
 Construction in progress  0  366,171  0  366,171 
Total Capital Assets, Not Being  
 Depreciated  6,495,900  366,171  0  6,862,071 
Capital assets, being depreciated 
 Land improvements  5,514  0  0  5,514 
 Collection and distribution  48,669,404  643,022  0  49,312,426 
 Vehicles and equipment  361,344  0  0  361,344 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
  Depreciated  49,036,262  643,022  0  49,679,284 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
 Land improvements  (5,514)  0  0  (5,514) 
 Collection and distribution   (17,234,135)  (1,483,056)  0  (18,717,191) 
 Vehicles and equipment  (353,902)  (6,376)  0  (360,278) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (17,593,551)  (1,489,432)  0  (19,082,983) 
Total Capital Assets, Being  
 Depreciated, Net  31,442,711  (846,410)  0  30,596,301 
Business-Type Activities Capital  
 Assets, Net $ 37,938,611 $ (480,239) $ 0 $ 37,458,372 
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
All water rights of the District are for sale at December 31, 2013. 
 
Depreciated expense was charged to programs of the District as follows: 
 
Governmental activities 
 General Government $ 433 
Business-type activities 
 Water $ 570,761 
 Sewer  918,671 
  Total $ 1,489,432 
 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the governmental activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2013: 
 
     Balance         Balance  Due Within  
    12/31/12    Additions   Payments   12/31/13   One Year  
Governmental Activities 
Accrued Compensated  
 Absences $ 17,405 $ 0 $ 207 $ 17,198 $ 0 
2005 CWRPDA Loan  7,055,000  0  410,000  6,645,000  425,000 
Loan premium  301,273  0  23,133  278,140  0 
 
 Total $ 7,373,678 $ 0 $ 433,340 $ 6,940,338 $ 425,000 
 
Compensated absences are expected to be liquidated primarily with revenues of the 
General Fund. 
 
2005 Clean Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Colorado Water Resources and 
Power Development Authority and proceeds were loaned to the District to finance a 
sewer pipeline and two pump stations. Principal and interest payments are due semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1, through 2026. Interest accrues at the rate of 
3.35% per annum. 
 
Future payments for the outstanding debt are as follows: 
 
       Interest and      
Year Ended December 31,  Principal   Admin. Fees   Total  
2014  $ 425,000 $ 261,587 $ 686,587 
2015   435,000  248,209  683,209 
2016   450,000  234,517  684,517 
2017   465,000  220,353  685,353 
2018   480,000  205,716  685,716 
2019-2023   2,595,000  830,080  3,425,080 
2024-2026   1,795,000  327,767  2,122,767 
 
 Total  $ 6,645,000 $ 2,328,229 $ 8,973,229 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 

18 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Following are the long-term debt transactions of the business-type activities for the year 
ended December 31, 2013: 
 
    Balance           Balance   Due Within  
    12/31/12   Additions   Payments   12/31/13   One Year  
 Business-Type Activities 
 Accrued compensated  
  absences $ 113,264 $ 2,240 $ 0 $ 115,504 $ 0 
 
Loan Committments 
 
During 2013, the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) approved the District’s 
application for a thirty year loan. The loan principal balance shall not exceed 
$18,538,550 at an annual interest rate of 3.25%. 
 

NOTE 6 - PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
For these risks of loss, with the exception of workers’ compensation, the District carries 
commercial insurance. For workers’ compensation, the District participates in the 
Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool, a separate and independent 
governmental and legal entity formed by intergovernmental agreement. 
 
The purposes of the Pool are to provide members defined liability, property, and 
workers compensation coverages and to assist members in preventing and reducing 
losses and injuries to property and to persons or property which might result in claims 
being made against members of the Pool, their employees and officers. 
 
It is the intent of the members of the Pool to create an entity in perpetuity which will 
administer and use funds contributed by the members to defend and indemnify, in 
accordance with the bylaws, any member of the Pool against stated liability of loss, to 
the limit of the financial resources of the Pool. It is also the intent of the members to 
have the Pool provide continuing stability and availability of needed coverages at 
reasonable costs. All income and assets of the Pool shall be at all times dedicated to the 
exclusive benefit of its members. The Pool is a separate legal entity and the District 
does not approve budgets nor does it have the ability to significantly affect the 
operations of the Pool. 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS 
 

Profit Sharing Plan 
 
The District has established a profit sharing pension plan on behalf of all District 
employees. The contribution requirements of plan participants and the District are 
established and may be amended by the Board of Directors. All employees are eligible 
to participate in the plan upon employment, and become fully vested after five years of 
service. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The District may contribute up to 15% of each participating employee’s compensation. 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the District contributed $50,782 to the Plan, 
representing 15% of employee compensation. All contributions are deposited to the 
individual employee’s self-directed accounts and the District has no further fiduciary 
responsibility for the plan assets. 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all District employees 
and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All plan 
investments are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the employees. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable emergency. 

 
NOTE 8 - CONCENTRATIONS 

 
One company paid 9.4% of all revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013. This 
same company was responsible for 27.5% of the property tax collected. 
 

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Tabor Amendment 
 
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20 
(the “Amendment”) which has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending 
abilities, and other specific requirements of state and local government. The 
Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The District believes it is 
in compliance with the requirements of the Amendment. 
 
In November, 2001, the District electors allowed the District to spend the full proceeds 
of any taxes, fees, charges, grants, rates, tolls or any other revenues collected in fiscal 
year 2000 and in all subsequent fiscal years without regard to any limitation contained 
in the Amendment. 
 
The District has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying 
expenditures, as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2013, the emergency 
reserve of $8,129 was reported as a restriction of fund balance in the General Fund.
 

 Other Commitments And Contingencies 
 
The District has entered into a contract to purchase sewer treatment services from the 
City of Littleton, Colorado. This City is treating all wastewater of the District. The 
contract is irrevocable by the District as long as bonds to finance the City’s treatment 
plant are still outstanding. 
 
The District has entered into an agreement to purchase is water from the City of Aurora, 
Colorado. This agreement expires in 2105 and then automatically and continuously 
renews for another ninety years. As part of the agreement with the City of Aurora, the 
District will pay the City development and connection fee of $6,575 per customer. 
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
This fee is due in December 2015, although the District may purchase taps before that 
date. The District estimates that this fee will be $24,985,000. As more fully described in 
Note 5, the District has received a loan from the CWCB to finance a portion of these tap 
fees. 
 
In November 2011, the District electors approved an increase in District debt of 
$6,500,000. These funds will be used to build a water treatment plant. At December 31, 
2013, the District had entered into an engineering contract related to the plant which 
totals $1,333,000. 
 
The District has agreed to sell its waste water treatment plant to another water and 
sanitation district. This total sale price is $4,000,000 plus $300 for every tap sold by the 
buyer. The District anticipates a total minimum price of $7,000,000. The District has 
received, and included in deferred income, the amount of $200,000 at December 31, 
2013. 
 
During the 1970’s the District presold approximately 2,500 taps. For the year ended 
December 31, 2013 each prepaid tap had a credit value of $14,757 against the total tap 
cost of approximately $37,125. At December 31, 2013, 87 presold taps remained.
 

NOTE 10 - CHANGE IN ACOUNTING PRINCIPLES 
 

 During the year ended December 31, 2013, the District implemented GASB 
Statement Number 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Implementation of this standard did not have a 
material effect on the District. 
 
 



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
     Original      Variance  
     And Final      Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 793,035 $ 788,605 $ (4,430) 
 Specific ownership taxes    50,000  64,505  14,505 
 Investment income    2,000  1,148  (852) 
 Miscellaneous revenues    500  0  (500) 
 
  Total Revenues    845,535  854,258  8,723 
 
Expenditures 
 Salaries and benefits    120,000  118,900  1,100 
 Accounting and audit    25,000  16,928  8,072 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Director fees    8,000  6,700  1,300 
 Education    20,000  9,486  10,514 
 Engineering    15,000  14,417  583 
 Insurance    13,000  11,176  1,824 
 Legal fees    20,000  19,796  204 
 Miscellaneous    5,000  5,637  (637) 
 Office expense    20,000  13,214  6,786 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions   1,500  1,238  262 
 Rent     20,000  2,694  17,306 
 Repairs and maintenance    25,000  10,606  14,394 
 Treasurer fees    15,000  11,862  3,138 
 Utilities    7,500  4,529  2,971 
 Vehicle expense    4,000  2,952  1,048 
 Capital outlay    5,000  0  5,000 
 
  Total Expenditures    325,000  250,135  74,865 
 
  Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  520,535  604,123  83,588 
 
Other Financing Uses 
 Transfers out    (540,000)  (540,000)  0 
 
  Net Change in Fund Balances  $ (19,465)  64,123 $ 83,588 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      616,205 
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 680,328 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 
 
 
NOTE 1 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 Budgets 
 
 Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the District. Budgets for the General and 

Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgetary comparisons for the proprietary funds are 
presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis. Capital outlay and debt principal are 
budgeted as expenditures, and depreciation is not budgeted. 

 
 The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 

financial statements. 
 

 In September, District management submits to the Board of Directors a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

 
 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
 Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 

resolution. 
 

 District management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between 
departments within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total 
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
 All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado governments may not exceed 

budgeted appropriations at the fund level. 
 
 As Plum Valley Heights was formed in 2013, the subdistrict does not have a budget for 

the twelve months ending December 31, 2013. This maybe a violation of Colorado State 
Statutue. 

 



 

 

INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
  Original      Variance  
  And Final      Positive  
  Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Investment income $ 0 $ 30,624 $ 30,624 
 
Expenditures 
 Capital outlay  23,000,000  0  23,000,000 
 
  Net Change in Fund Balances  (23,000,000)  30,624  23,030,624 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning  0  23,009,143  23,009,143 
 
Fund Balances, Ending $ (23,000,000) $ 23,039,767 $ 46,039,767 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
  Original      Variance  
  And Final      Positive  
  Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Revenues 
 Property taxes $ 901,617 $ 891,537 $ (10,080) 
 Specific ownership taxes  80,000  78,336  (1,664) 
 Investment income  10,000  161  (9,839) 
 
  Total Revenues  991,617  970,034  (21,583) 
 
Expenditures 
 General government  15,000  13,482  1,518 
 Principal  410,000  410,000  0 
 Interest  274,492  274,492  0 
 
 Total Expenditures  699,492  697,974  1,518 
 
 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
  Expenditures  292,125  272,060  (20,065) 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 Transfers in  118,000  1,045,846  927,846 
 
  Net Change in Fund  
 Balances  410,125  1,317,906  907,781 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning  6,316,736  253,976  (6,062,760) 
 
Fund Balances, Ending   $ 6,726,861 $ 1,571,882 $ (5,154,979) 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

WATER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 2,720,000 $ 2,651,112 $ (68,888) 
 Permit fees    3,300  1,550  (1,750) 
 Other water sales    138,022  176,018  37,996 
 Miscellaneous    89,200  92,582  3,382 
 Investment income    10,000  5,610  (4,390) 
 Availability charges    60,000  72,444  12,444 
 Capital charges    500,000  1,064,714  564,714 
 Dominion reimbursements    0  169,340  169,340 
 System development charges   21,000  45,786  24,786 
 Transfers in    340,000  340,000  0 
 
  Total Revenues    3,881,522  4,619,156  737,634 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    25,000  16,528  8,472 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    27,000  20,511  6,489 
 Contract labor    10,000  8,400  1,600 
 Education    25,000  33,978  (8,978) 
 Engineering and other professional costs   120,000  77,090  42,910 
 GPS/GIS    15,000  19,251  (4,251) 
 Insurance    25,000  22,278  2,722 
 Lab and test fees    15,000  11,585  3,415 
 Legal fees    40,000  24,986  15,014 
 Meter expense    150,000  116,393  33,607 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  8,021  3,979 
 Office expense    30,000  26,865  3,135 
 Operating supplies    90,000  98,484  (8,484) 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    390,000  404,820  (14,820) 
 Repairs and maintenance    250,000  218,435  31,565 
 Utilities    105,000  104,965  35 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  13,164  1,836 
 Loan fees    0  26,201  (26,201) 
 Dominion    35,000  15,534  19,466 
 Water cost    1,500,000  1,172,469  327,531 
 Capital outlay    2,050,000  981,138  1,068,862 
 Conservation rebates    5,000  5,875  (875) 
 Chatfield reallocation    20,000  1,941  18,059 
 Water rights capital    10,000  9,540  460 
 Transfers out    60,000  988,635  (928,635) 
 
  Total Expenditures    5,024,000  4,427,087  596,913 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ (1,142,478)  192,069 $ 1,334,547 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

WATER FUND (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay     $ 981,138   
 Depreciation      (570,761)   
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     602,446   
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      18,655,008   
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 19,257,454   
 
 



 

See the accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 
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ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE NON GAAP BASIS 

SEWER FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 
 
           Variance  
           Positive  
      Budget   Actual   (Negative)  
Revenues 
 Charges for services $ 1,430,000 $ 1,481,358 $ 51,358 
 Charges for services – Lockheed 
  Martin Agreement  415,000  307,299  (107,701) 
 Permit fees    1,000  5,670  4,670  
 Ravenna service charge    22,000  22,412  412 
 Miscellaneous    42,000  6,083  (35,917) 
 Investment income    1,500  1,039  (461) 
 Availability charges    58,000  57,211  (789) 
 Capital charges    120,000  158,581  38,581 
 System development charges   30,252  31,020  768 
 Transfer in    200,000  200,000  0 
 
  Total Revenues    2,319,752  2,270,673  (49,079) 
 
Expenditures 
 Accounting and audit    25,000  16,723  8,277 
 Contract labor    1,000  0  1,000 
 Dominion expense    10,000  5,230  4,770 
 Education    20,000  7,387  12,613 
 Engineering    100,000  98,261  1,739 
 GPS/GIS    15,000  19,431  (4,431) 
 Insurance    25,000  22,207  2,793 
 Lab and test fees    300  400  (100) 
 Legal fees    20,000  23,146  (3,146) 
 Miscellaneous    12,000  7,716  4,284 
 Office expense    30,000  26,600  3,400 
 Operating supplies    45,000  56,540  (11,540) 
 Permits, dues and subscriptions    5,000  7,025  (2,025) 
 Payroll, taxes and benefits    390,000  404,820  (14,820) 
 Repairs and maintenance    200,000  135,225  64,775 
 Service fees    810,000  778,362  31,638 
 Utilities    115,000  92,304  22,696 
 Vehicle expense    15,000  11,391  3,609 
 Capital outlay    200,000  28,055  171,945 
 Transfer out    58,000  57,211  789 
 
  Total Expenditures    2,096,300  1,798,034  298,266 
 
  Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ 223,452  472,639 $ 249,187 
 
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis 
 Capital outlay      28,055 
 Depreciation      (918,671) 
 
  Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis     (417,977) 
 
Fund Balances, Beginning      25,916,152 
 
Fund Balances, Ending     $ 25,498,175 
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